
NOTICE OF OPEN MEETING & VOTE TO 

CLOSE PART OF THE MEETING 

A G E N D A  

COUNCIL MEETING 

City of Moberly 

City Council Room – Moberly City Hall 

101 West Reed Street 

April 06, 2020 

6:00 PM 
  

 

Posted:   

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Recognition of Visitors 

Communications, Requests, Informational Items & Consent Calendar 

1. A request authorizing the closure of Carpenter Street between Cleveland and Promenade on April 

12, 2020 for drive up Easter service.  

Public Hearing and Receipt of Bids 
2. A Public Hearing/First Consideration Of A Plan For Industrial Development Project And 

Costs/Benefits Analysis (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project). 

3. Receipt of bids for Morley St. Sidewalk project. 

4. Receipt of bids for Street Improvements (Reclamite and Restorative). 

5. Receipt of bids for pickup for Water D&C. 

Ordinances & Resolutions 
6. An Ordinance Approving A Plan For An Industrial Development Project And Costs-Benefits 

Analysis And An Industrial Development Project Within The City Of Moberly 

7. An Ordinance Approving A Development Agreement In Connection With An Industrial 

Development Project; And Providing Further Authority 

8. An Ordinance Approving A Cooperation And Purchase Agreement In Connection With An 

Industrial Development Project; Ratifying Prior Acts In Conformance; And Providing Further 

Authority 

9. An Ordinance Authorizing Acceptance By The City Of Moberly Of Certain Real Property In 

Furtherance Of An Industrial Development Project; Authorizing The Issuance Of $85,000,000 

Maximum Aggregate Principal Amount Of Taxable Industrial Revenue Bond (Plumrose 

Manufacturing Facility Project) Series 2020; Approving The Execution And Delivery Of A Bond 

Purchase Agreement, A Lease Purchase Agreement And A Trust Indenture To Be Entered Into 

With Respect To Such Bond; Providing For The Form, Terms And Conditions Of Such Bond And 

The Method Of Paying Such Bond; Prescribing Other Details And Granting Further Authority In 

Connection With The Issuance Of Said Bond And The Execution Of The Documents Approved 

Herein 

10. An Ordinance Accepting The Bid Of And Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A 

Construction Agreement With S & A Equipment & Builders, LLC For The City Of Moberly 

Morley Street Sidewalk Improvement Project. 

11. An Ordinance Adopting Standardized Specifications for Sanitary Sewer Systems And Water Main 

Construction. 

1



 

12. An Ordinance Authorizing Execution Of An Letter Agreement With Jacobs Engineering Group, 

Inc., For Engineering Services. 

13. A Resolution Authorizing And Ratifying The City Manager’s Execution On Behalf Of The City Of 

Moberly That Certain Commercial And Industrial Sale Contract. 

14. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into An Agreement With Wiedeman Dozing, 

LLC For Removal Of The Fennel Building Roof. 

15. A Resolution Repealing Resolution R863 And Adopting A New Resolution Authorizing The 

Purchase Of Police Vehicles 

16. A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of Moberly Motors For A 2020 Ford F150, Crew Cab, 4x4 Xl 

Trim For The Water Department. 

17. A Resolution appropriating money out of the Treasury of the City of Moberly, Missouri. 

Official Reports 

Anything Else to Come Before the Council 
18. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn to a Work Session Meeting  

Adjournment 
 

Due to the recommendation of the President, The Governor, the CDC, we will not be allowing the 

public to be physically during meetings and bid openings.  We invite you to attend virtually by 

viewing it live on the City of Moberly You Tube Live Channel, Facebook Page, Vimeo-Moberly 

View.  A link to the City’s Channel can be found on our website’s main page at 

www.cityofmoberly.com.  Representatives of the news media may obtain copies of this notice by 

contacting the City Clerk.  If a special accommodation is needed as addressed by the Americans 

with Disabilities Act, please contact the City Clerk twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

  

2

http://www.cityofmoberly.com/


City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Police 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: A request authorizing the closure of Carpenter Street between Cleveland and 

Promenade on April 12, 2020 for drive up Easter service.  

 
 

Summary: 
Pastor Richard Clouse of the Carpenter Street Baptist Church is requesting 

permission to close Carpenter Street between Cleveland and Promenade on 

April 12th, 2020 between 9:00am and 10:30 am to hold drive up Easter service 

for the congregation. The street closure is needed to ensure safety for the 

event. Participants would remain in their vehicles to maintain social distance. 

Pastor Clouse is requesting permission to have this event through Randolph 

County Health Department as well. Due to the short notice, this resolution 

does not have time to go through work session first.  

  

Recommended 

Action: Disapprove due to stay at home order  

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:  

  

Available Budget $: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

3

 #1.



4

 #1.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Public Hearing/First Consideration Of A Plan For Industrial Development 

Project And Costs/Benefits Analysis (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility 

Project). 

  

Summary: The Council of the City proposes to consider a certain “project for industrial 

development” (as that term is defined in section 100.010 of the Revised Statutes of 

Missouri, as amended) involving the acquisition, assembly, and leasing to Plumrose USA, 

Inc. of certain property and installation of certain real and personal property on a portion 

of an approximately 40 acre site located at the Moberly Area Industrial Park and the 

construction on the site of a food/bakery manufacturing facility containing approximately 

85,000 square feet (collectively, the “Project”).  The Project also call for the issuance by 

the City of its taxable industrial development revenue bonds in a maximum aggregate 

principal amount not to exceed $85,000,000 in support of the Project. 

Any city wishing to carry out a project for industrial development under the provisions of 

sections 100.010 through 100.200, inclusive of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as 

amended (“Chapter 100”) must first prepare and approve a plan meeting requirement of 

Chapter 100.  Accordingly, the City has caused to be prepared a certain Plan for Industrial 

Development Project and Costs/Benefits Analysis (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility 

Project) dated February 27, 2020 (the “Plan”).   

Chapter 100 also requires that any municipality proposing a project for industrial 

development which involves issuance of revenue bonds or involves conveyance of a fee 

interest in property to a municipality shall, not less than twenty days before approving the 

plan for a project, provide notice of the proposed project to affected taxing districts 

setting forth, among other things, the date on which the governing body will first consider 

approval of the plan, and an invitation to such taxing districts to submit comments which 

be fairly and duly considered. 

Although, strictly speaking, Chapter 100 does not require a “public hearing” on industrial 

development plans and projects, the Council has determined that a duly noticed public 

hearing is the best method of assuring that any comments received from affected taxing 

districts are “fairly and duly considered.”  Accordingly, the Council by prior resolution 

has set the date of its April 6 regular meeting as the date on which the Council will first 

consider approval of the Plan and the Project and has directed the giving of notice 

required by Chapter 100.  This hearing will constitute the Council’s first consideration of 

the approval of the Plan and the Project and will provide opportunity for receipt and fair 

and due consideration of taxing districts’ comment, all as provided in Chapter 100. 

  
Recommended Action: Hold a Public Hearing 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     

       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report    x   Other         Passed Failed 

 

5

 #2.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: Public Works 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: Receipt of bids for Morley St. Sidewalk project. 

  

Summary: These are the bids for the sidewalk replacement/construction along the West 

side of Morley from Coates to Hwy 24 and along the South side of Hwy 24 

from Morley to the East Outer road.  This bid includes moving several water 

customers off of the 2” water line on the West side that is continually failing 

and undersized to the large line on the East side of Morley.  

 

The total construction cost for this project is $1,274,320.22.  Utilities will be 

paying for their portion of the work $195,509.82, leaving $1,078,810.40 as the 

public works portion from the Transportation Trust fund.  We have 

$936,471.38 in outside funding from the STP-U funding and the cost share 

funding. 

 

Staff recommends approval of this. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Accept this bid. 

  

Fund Name: Transportation Trust 

  

Account Number: 600.167.5409 

  

Available Budget $: 925,000.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
   x   Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

6

 #3.



Bid Tabulation

January 23, 2020

Moberly, MO 18943.000

STP-4500(207) Morley Street Sidewalk Improvements

STIP 2P3220

Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

Participating Bid Items - BASE BID A

202-20.10 Removal of Improvements 1 LS 50,000.00 $50,000.00 67,565.33 $67,565.33 100,000.00 $100,000.00 130,000.00 $130,000.00 131,141.00 $131,141.00

203-99.01 Earthwork 1 LS 45,000.00 $45,000.00 14,340.58 $14,340.58 75,000.00 $75,000.00 150,000.00 $150,000.00 70,020.00 $70,020.00

304-05.04 Type 5 Aggregate for Base (4 in. Thick) 188 SY 8.00 $1,504.00 17.79 $3,344.52 20.00 $3,760.00 11.00 $2,068.00 29.96 $5,632.48

608-10.12  Truncated Domes 542 SF 25.00 $13,550.00 64.15 $34,769.30 35.00 $18,970.00 19.00 $10,298.00 17.49 $9,479.58

608-50.07 Paved Approach (7" Thick) 90 SY 55.00 $4,950.00 258.27 $23,244.30 150.00 $13,500.00 69.00 $6,210.00 179.40 $16,146.00

608-50.08 Paved Approach (8" Thick) 5,441 SY 60.00 $326,460.00 72.82 $396,213.62 70.00 $380,870.00 69.00 $375,429.00 85.51 $465,259.91

608-30.03 3 in. Concrete Median Strip 141 SY 40.00 $5,640.00 153.69 $21,670.29 90.00 $12,690.00 78.00 $10,998.00 79.38 $11,192.58

608-40.23 Sidewalk Hand-Railing 73 LF 100.00 $7,300.00 112.13 $8,185.49 75.00 $5,475.00 95.00 $6,935.00 102.75 $7,500.75

608-99.05 Paved Approach (8" Thick High Early Strength) 315 SY 85.00 $26,775.00 84.49 $26,614.35 95.00 $29,925.00 88.00 $27,720.00 92.05 $28,995.75

608-99.25 Concrete Sidewalk and Ramps 4,677 SY 50.00 $233,850.00 55.81 $261,023.37 50.00 $233,850.00 54.00 $252,558.00 75.76 $354,329.52

609-10.11 Concrete Curb (Over 6 in Height) Type S 151 LF 30.00 $4,530.00 39.50 $5,964.50 75.00 $11,325.00 50.00 $7,550.00 45.74 $6,906.74

609-10.52 Curb and Gutter Type B 562 LF 30.00 $16,860.00 76.07 $42,751.34 40.00 $22,480.00 40.00 $22,480.00 42.94 $24,132.28

609-99.01 Concrete Sidewalk Trench Cover 72 SF 200.00 $14,400.00 34.91 $2,513.52 50.00 $3,600.00 275.00 $19,800.00 152.36 $10,969.92

616-10.05 Construction Signs 271 SF 20.00 $5,420.00 11.38 $3,083.98 75.00 $20,325.00 10.30 $2,791.30 13.87 $3,758.77

616-10.28 Channelizers 135 EA 25.00 $3,375.00 25.05 $3,381.75 30.00 $4,050.00 15.60 $2,106.00 19.11 $2,579.85

616-10.30 Type III Moveable Barricade 6 EA 175.00 $1,050.00 153.69 $922.14 150.00 $900.00 112.00 $672.00 110.00 $660.00

616-10.31 Type III Moveable Barricade with Light 6 EA 200.00 $1,200.00 221.99 $1,331.94 225.00 $1,350.00 230.00 $1,380.00 198.00 $1,188.00

616-10.40 Flashing Arrow Panel 3 EA 1,500.00 $4,500.00 1,366.11 $4,098.33 1,400.00 $4,200.00 1,780.00 $5,340.00 1,760.00 $5,280.00

618-10.00 Mobilization 1 LS 60,000.00 $60,000.00 22,199.22 $22,199.22 120,000.00 $120,000.00 30,000.00 $30,000.00 82,000.00 $82,000.00

620-00.03 Preformed Thermoplastic Pavement Marking, 4 in White 60 LF 2.00 $120.00 4.94 $296.40 5.00 $300.00 10.30 $618.00 5.00 $300.00

620-00.09 Preformed Thermoplastic Pavement Marking, 6 in White 1,739 LF 2.00 $3,478.00 7.40 $12,868.60 6.75 $11,738.25 6.20 $10,781.80 7.18 $12,486.02

620-00.12 Preformed Thermoplastic Pavement Marking, 12 in White 116 LF 2.00 $232.00 14.80 $1,716.80 14.00 $1,624.00 31.00 $3,596.00 14.66 $1,700.56

620-00.21 Preformed Thermoplastic Pavement Marking, Left/Right Arrow 5 EA 450.00 $2,250.00 398.45 $1,992.25 375.00 $1,875.00 361.00 $1,805.00 400.00 $2,000.00

620-00.24 Preformed Thermoplastic Pavement Marking, Straight Arrow 2 EA 350.00 $700.00 341.53 $683.06 400.00 $800.00 361.00 $722.00 350.00 $700.00

627-40.00 Contractor Furnished Surveying and Staking 1 LS 35,000.00 $35,000.00 11,384.22 $11,384.22 40,000.00 $40,000.00 18,000.00 $18,000.00 14,000.00 $14,000.00

726-99.02 15 in HDPE Pipe 12 LF 65.00 $780.00 152.98 $1,835.76 100.00 $1,200.00 52.00 $624.00 110.00 $1,320.00

726-99.03 15 in CMP End Section 2 EA 600.00 $1,200.00 810.84 $1,621.68 400.00 $800.00 240.00 $480.00 207.00 $414.00

805-10.00A Seeding - Cool Season Mixture 1 AC 5,000.00 $5,000.00 6,659.77 $6,659.77 5,850.00 $5,850.00 10,000.00 $10,000.00 3,850.00 $3,850.00

805-20.00A Seeding - Warm Season Mixture 1 AC 5,000.00 $5,000.00 6,659.77 $6,659.77 5,850.00 $5,850.00 10,000.00 $10,000.00 4,290.00 $4,290.00

806-10.07A Curb Inlet Check 37 EA 150.00 $5,550.00 187.84 $6,950.08 165.00 $6,105.00 185.00 $6,845.00 132.00 $4,884.00

806-10.19 Silt Fence 1,100 LF 5.00 $5,500.00 3.19 $3,509.00 3.00 $3,300.00 4.00 $4,400.00 5.40 $5,940.00

806-10.05 DITCH CHECK 24 LF 25.00 $600.00 18.78 $450.72 17.00 $408.00 22.00 $528.00 47.00 $1,128.00

902-08.33 flat sheet sign 28 SF 45.00 $1,260.00 56.92 $1,593.76 50.00 $1,400.00 53.20 $1,489.60 55.00 $1,540.00

902-08.34 signal sign mounting hardware 10 EA 250.00 $2,500.00 204.92 $2,049.20 180.00 $1,800.00 191.50 $1,915.00 198.00 $1,980.00

902.27-08 post, signal 8 ft. 6 EA 1,000.00 $6,000.00 865.20 $5,191.20 760.00 $4,560.00 808.00 $4,848.00 836.00 $5,016.00

902.49-20 detector, pushbutton (new installation) 6 EA 200.00 $1,200.00 314.20 $1,885.20 276.00 $1,656.00 294.00 $1,764.00 304.00 $1,824.00

902.49-44 detector, vehicle induction loop (2 channel) 1 EA 300.00 $300.00 142.30 $142.30 125.00 $125.00 133.00 $133.00 250.00 $250.00

902.08-11 Signal head, 1S, Pedestrian 6 EA 650.00 $3,900.00 801.45 $4,808.70 704.00 $4,224.00 750.00 $4,500.00 775.00 $4,650.00

902.99.02 Install Signal Heads Provided by Others 4 EA 1,000.00 $4,000.00 437.15 $1,748.60 384.00 $1,536.00 408.00 $1,632.00 422.00 $1,688.00

902.50-20 conduit, 1 in., loop detector 11 LF 7.00 $77.00 11.38 $125.18 10.00 $110.00 10.65 $117.15 20.00 $220.00

902.53-00 conduit, 3 in., trenched 101 LF 12.00 $1,212.00 13.66 $1,379.66 12.00 $1,212.00 12.75 $1,287.75 13.20 $1,333.20

902.73-00 conduit, 3 in., pushed 173 LF 30.00 $5,190.00 27.32 $4,726.36 24.00 $4,152.00 25.50 $4,411.50 26.40 $4,567.20

902.83-08 cable, 16 awg 2 conductor 1,170 LF 1.00 $1,170.00 1.14 $1,333.80 1.00 $1,170.00 1.06 $1,240.20 1.10 $1,287.00

902.83-10 cable, 16 awg 5 conductor 1,170 LF 1.30 $1,521.00 1.31 $1,532.70 1.15 $1,345.50 1.22 $1,427.40 1.27 $1,485.90

902.83-11 cable, 16 awg 7 conductor 1,370 LF 1.50 $2,055.00 1.42 $1,945.40 1.25 $1,712.50 1.33 $1,822.10 1.37 $1,876.90

902.85-00 cable, loop detector, in duct 310 LF 7.00 $2,170.00 6.83 $2,117.30 6.00 $1,860.00 6.35 $1,968.50 6.60 $2,046.00

902.85-10 cable, loop detector, lead-in 200 LF 3.00 $600.00 1.71 $342.00 1.50 $300.00 1.60 $320.00 2.00 $400.00

902.99-03 video cable 650 LF 2.00 $1,300.00 2.05 $1,332.50 1.80 $1,170.00 1.90 $1,235.00 2.00 $1,300.00

902.88-10 pull box, preformed class 1 1 EA 1,100.00 $1,100.00 1,202.17 $1,202.17 1,056.00 $1,056.00 1,225.00 $1,225.00 1,160.00 $1,160.00

902.88-11 pull box, preformed class 2 2 CY 1,300.00 $2,600.00 1,536.87 $3,073.74 1,350.00 $2,700.00 1,440.00 $2,880.00 1,485.00 $2,970.00

902.91-00 base, concrete 2.7 CY 1,500.00 $4,050.00 3,187.58 $8,606.47 2,800.00 $7,560.00 2,950.00 $7,965.00 3,080.00 $8,316.00

Don Schnieders ExcavatingStockman ConstructionRhad A Baker ConstructionS & A Equipment + Builders

Date:

Bartlett & West Project No.:

Item No. Description Quantity Unit Engineer's Estimate

7

 #3.



Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

Don Schnieders ExcavatingStockman ConstructionRhad A Baker ConstructionS & A Equipment + BuildersItem No. Description Quantity Unit Engineer's Estimate

$933,979.00 $1,044,982.22 $1,181,769.25 $1,174,916.30 $1,334,095.91

Non-Participating Bid Items - BASE BID B

603-99.02A Service Line - 1 in HDPE 951 LF 12.00 $11,412.00 21.50 $20,446.50 30.00 $28,530.00 10.50 $9,985.50 24.43 $23,232.93

603-99.02B Service Line - 1 in Copper 18 LF 20.00 $360.00 434.23 $7,816.14 15.00 $270.00 65.50 $1,179.00 282.65 $5,087.70

603-99.02C Service Line - 2 in HDPE 247 LF 20.00 $4,940.00 25.06 $6,189.82 10.00 $2,470.00 37.10 $9,163.70 55.94 $13,817.18

603-99.02D 3 in HDPE Bored Crossing 951 LF 60.00 $57,060.00 42.69 $40,598.19 35.00 $33,285.00 44.40 $42,224.40 49.16 $46,751.16

603-99.02E 4 in HDPE Bored Crossing 367 LF 75.00 $27,525.00 54.08 $19,847.36 45.00 $16,515.00 61.65 $22,625.55 65.92 $24,192.64

603-99.02F 12 in HDPE Bored Crossing 80 LF 275.00 $22,000.00 147.99 $11,839.20 200.00 $16,000.00 168.50 $13,480.00 201.50 $16,120.00

603-99.02G Water Meter Pit Assembly - 1 in Meter 1 EA 2,500.00 $2,500.00 6,186.96 $6,186.96 4,500.00 $4,500.00 1,287.00 $1,287.00 2,265.00 $2,265.00

603-99.02H Water Meter Pit Assembly - 2 in Meter 2 EA 3,500.00 $7,000.00 3,736.07 $7,472.14 5,800.00 $11,600.00 2,965.00 $5,930.00 2,465.00 $4,930.00

603-99.02I Water Valve - 6 in 4 EA 1,200.00 $4,800.00 2,598.22 $10,392.88 1,200.00 $4,800.00 1,586.00 $6,344.00 1,899.45 $7,597.80

603-99.02J Water Valve -  8 in 1 EA 1,400.00 $1,400.00 6,186.96 $6,186.96 1,600.00 $1,600.00 1,700.00 $1,700.00 2,611.00 $2,611.00

603-99.02K Remove existing fire hydrant 1 EA 750.00 $750.00 2,850.93 $2,850.93 1,000.00 $1,000.00 890.00 $890.00 1,500.00 $1,500.00

603-99.02L Fire hydrant assembly (includes 6 in valve and stub of 6 in pipe) 7 EA 3,850.00 $26,950.00 3,683.90 $25,787.30 4,000.00 $28,000.00 6,921.00 $48,447.00 6,196.34 $43,374.38

603-99.02M Water Main 6 in PVC 180 LF 65.00 $11,700.00 27.63 $4,973.40 25.00 $4,500.00 74.00 $13,320.00 74.11 $13,339.80

603-99.02N Water Main 8 in PVC 25 LF 75.00 $1,875.00 198.16 $4,954.00 75.00 $1,875.00 111.00 $2,775.00 117.89 $2,947.25

603-99.02O Cut and cap 2 in main 8 EA 500.00 $4,000.00 903.79 $7,230.32 100.00 $800.00 814.00 $6,512.00 1,000.00 $8,000.00

603-99.02P Connect To Existing Water Main 3 EA 750.00 $2,250.00 853.82 $2,561.46 500.00 $1,500.00 3,450.00 $10,350.00 3,248.34 $9,745.02

603-99.02Q Sidewalk/Pavement repairs 178 SY 80.00 $14,240.00 57.17 $10,176.26 25.00 $4,450.00 120.00 $21,360.00 107.94 $19,213.32

$200,762.00 $195,509.82 $161,695.00 $217,573.15 $244,725.18

$1,134,741.00 $1,240,492.04 $1,343,464.25 $1,392,489.45 $1,578,821.09

Add Alternate A - Median replacement at Hwy 24 & Bus. 63

603-99.01 3 in Decorative Concrete Median Pavement 461 SY 40.00 $18,440.00 73.38 $33,828.18 75.00 $34,575.00 87.00 $40,107.00 67.08 $30,923.88

$18,440.00 $33,828.18 $34,575.00 $40,107.00 $30,923.88

BASE BID + ALT A TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $1,153,181.00 $1,274,320.22 $1,378,039.25 $1,432,596.45 $1,609,744.97

Add Alternate B - Pedestrian Signals at Hwy 63 Southbound Ramp

902-08.33 flat sheet sign 17 SF 45.00 $765.00 56.92 $967.64 50.00 $850.00 53.20 $904.40 55.00 $935.00

902-08.34 signal sign mounting hardware 3 EA 250.00 $750.00 204.92 $614.76 180.00 $540.00 191.50 $574.50 200.00 $600.00

902.27-08 post, signal 8 ft. 2 EA 1,000.00 $2,000.00 865.20 $1,730.40 760.00 $1,520.00 808.00 $1,616.00 836.00 $1,672.00

902.49-20 detector, pushbutton (new installation) 2 EA 200.00 $400.00 142.30 $284.60 125.00 $250.00 133.00 $266.00 175.00 $350.00

902.08-11 Signal head, 1S, Pedestrian 2 EA 650.00 $1,300.00 801.45 $1,602.90 704.00 $1,408.00 750.00 $1,500.00 775.00 $1,550.00

902.99.02 Install Signal Heads Provided by Others 1 LF 1,000.00 $1,000.00 437.15 $437.15 384.00 $384.00 408.00 $408.00 422.00 $422.00

902.53-00 conduit, 3 in., trenched 72 LF 12.00 $864.00 13.66 $983.52 12.00 $864.00 12.80 $921.60 13.21 $951.12

902.83-08 cable, 16 awg 2 conductor 450 LF 1.00 $450.00 1.25 $562.50 1.10 $495.00 1.15 $517.50 1.23 $553.50

902.83-10 cable, 16 awg 5 conductor 450 LF 1.30 $585.00 1.31 $589.50 1.15 $517.50 1.20 $540.00 1.32 $594.00

902.91-00 base, concrete 1 CY 1,500.00 $1,500.00 3,187.58 $3,187.58 2,800.00 $2,800.00 2,980.00 $2,980.00 3,080.00 $3,080.00

$9,614.00 $10,960.55 $9,628.50 $10,228.00 $10,707.62

BASE BID + ALT A + ALT B TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $1,162,795.00 $1,285,280.77 $1,387,667.75 $1,442,824.45 $1,620,452.59

Add Alternate C - Fiber Reinforcement in Sidewalks

502-99.11 Misc. Macro-Synthetic Fiber Reinforced Concrete 4,666 SY 2.00 $9,332.00 7.60 $35,461.60 3.00 $13,998.00 3.60 $16,797.60 7.85 $36,628.10

$9,332.00 $35,461.60 $13,998.00 $16,797.60 $36,628.10

BASE BID + ALT A + ALT B + ALT C TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $1,172,127.00 $1,320,742.37 $1,401,665.75 $1,459,622.05 $1,657,080.69

Add Alternate D - Longitudinal Steel Reinforcement in Sidewalks

608-99.45 Longitudinal Reinforcement 4,666 SY 5.00 $23,330.00 8.91 $41,574.06 5.00 $23,330.00 7.00 $32,662.00 8.75 $40,827.50

$23,330.00 $41,574.06 $23,330.00 $32,662.00 $40,827.50

BASE A + BASE B + ALT A + ALT B + ALT C + ALT D TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $1,195,457.00 $1,362,316.43 $1,424,995.75 $1,492,284.05 $1,697,908.19

Participating Bid Items - BASE BID A Total

Add Alternate D Bid Items Total

BASE BID A + BASE BID B TOTAL

Non-Participating Bid Items - BASE BID B Total

Add Alternate A Bid Items Total

Add Alternate B Bid Items Total

Add Alternate C Bid Items Total

8

 #3.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: Public Works 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: Receipt of bids for Street Improvements (Reclamite and Restorative). 

  

Summary: Reclamite and Restorative seal are two key components of our annual street 

maintenance program.  We have bid this segment early as we have a 

cooperative agreement set up on these bids and several Counties/Cities in the 

area complete their work off of our pricing.  The prices are only up a few cents 

from last year and are inline with our anticipated budget.  Staff recommends 

the acceptance and approval of these bids. 

 

These particular products are a Tri-core exclusive product and they only 

provide it to one vendor in specific territories so there is no overlap.  There are 

other products on the market that are similar, but don’t come close to meet the 

specifications.  We have had a presentation on the products in the past to 

explain how they work and why we don’t get multiple bidders.   

 

We frequently only get one bid on asphalt and microsurface as those 

commercial type operations tend not to overlap areas either.  If any of our 

newer councilmen would like to have presentations on these products in the 

future to explain how they work, benefits and why we aren’t getting multiple 

bids, let me know and I will arrange it. 

 

Staff recommends accepting the bids for these and approving them. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Accept these bids. 

  

Fund Name: Street Improvement Fund 

  

Account Number: 601.000.5502 

  

Available Budget $: 108,186.99 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
  x  Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

9

 #4.



10

 #4.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: Receipt of bids for pickup for Water D&C. 

  

Summary: The City of Moberly advertised for bids for a new truck and bids were opened 

March 4th, 2020 at 10:00 am.   Two bids were received from Moberly Motors 

one in the amount of $31,074 and another in the amount of $31,382 and one 

bid was received from W-K Ford in the amount of $30,813.28.  It is the staff’s 

recommendation to proceed with purchase of the 2020 Ford F150 4X4 Crew 

Cab Pickup-XL trim level from Moberly Motors for $31,382. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Accept these bids. 

  

Fund Name: Capital Improvement Plan 

  

Account Number: 301.112.5502 

  

Available Budget $: 118,943.25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
   x   Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 11

 #5.



12

 #5.



13

 #5.



14

 #5.



15

 #5.



16

 #5.



17

 #5.



18

 #5.



19

 #5.



20

 #5.



21

 #5.



22

 #5.



23

 #5.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Approving A Plan For An Industrial Development Project And 

Costs-Benefits Analysis And An Industrial Development Project Within The 

City Of Moberly 

  

Summary: This ordinance makes certain findings and determinations and approves a Plan 

for Industrial Development Project and Costs/Benefits Analysis dated 

February 27, 2020 (the “Plan”) prepared in accordance with Chapter 100 of 

the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (“Chapter 100”) and a “Project 

for Industrial Development” (the “Project”) involving the acquisition, 

assembly, and leasing of certain property and installation of certain real and 

personal property on a portion of an approximately 40 acre site located at the 

Moberly Area Industrial Park.  

The proposed Project includes the construction on the site of a food/bakery 

manufacturing facility containing approximately 85,000 square feet 

(collectively, the “Project”), and the issuance by the City in two or more series 

of its taxable industrial development revenue bonds in a maximum aggregate 

principal amount not to exceed $85,000,000 for the purpose of completing the 

Project. 

As required by Chapter 100, prior to the approval of the Plan and the Project 

the Council must first give 20 days prior notice to affected taxing districts 

stating the date the Council will first consider the Plan and Project.  The notice 

including the Plan information and an invitation to such taxing jurisdictions to 

submit comments to the Council was approved by resolution on March 16 and 

the notice was duly provided.  The hearing on the Pan and Project was to be 

held and concluded at the Council’s regular meeting of April 6, 2020. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this ordinance   

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: $0 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report    x   Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
        Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report   x    Other         Passed Failed 

 24

 #6.



1 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

 

BILL NO. __________           ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PLAN FOR AN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECT AND COSTS-BENEFITS ANALYSIS AND AN INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT PROJECT WITHIN THE CITY OF MOBERLY. 

 

WHEREAS, Sections 349.012 and 100.020 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as 

amended, authorize the Council of the City (the “Council”) as the governing body of the City to 

promote commercial and industrial development, and to achieve such promotion, to engage in any 

activities which such municipality deems necessary, and sections 70.210 through 70.320 of the 

Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, authorize the City to contract with any private person, 

firm, association, or corporation for the planning, development, construction, acquisition, or 

operation of any public improvement, the subject and purposes of which are within the scope of 

the powers of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the provisions of article VI, section 27(b) of the Missouri Constitution, as 

amended, and sections 100.010 to 100.200, inclusive, of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as 

amended (collectively, the “Act”), further authorize the City to purchase, construct, extend and 

improve certain projects (as defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to issue 

industrial development revenue bonds in furtherance of such projects and to lease or otherwise 

dispose of such projects to private persons or corporations for manufacturing, commercial, 

warehousing and industrial development purposes upon such terms and conditions as the City shall 

deem advisable; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 100.050 of the Act, the City has prepared a plan for an 

industrial development project attached as Exhibit A to and incorporated by reference in this 

Ordinance (the “Plan”) which calls for the acquisition, assembly, and leasing of certain property 

and installation of certain real and personal property on a portion of an approximately 40 acre site 

located at The Moberly Industrial Park situated within the City known and numbered as _____ 

McKeown Parkway (the “Property”), which activities are expected to facilitate the construction 

and installation of buildings and improvements on the Property including, without limitation, the 

construction of a food/bakery manufacturing facility containing approximately 80,000 square feet 

(collectively, the “Project”), and the Plan contemplates the issuance by the City in two or more 

series of its taxable industrial development revenue bonds in a maximum aggregate principal 

amount not to exceed $85,000,000 (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of completing the Project as 

further described in the Plan, all in accordance with and pursuant to the Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 100.059 of the Act, the Council has provided written 

notice of the proposed Plan and Project to affected taxing entities not less than Twenty (20) days 

prior to the Council’s consideration of the Plan and Project and in such notice, such taxing entities 

were invited to submit comments to the Council which were fairly and duly considered and a 

public hearing on the Plan and Project was conducted by the Council on April 6, 2020; and  

 

 WHEREAS, after closing the Hearing, and upon due consideration, the Council now 

wishes to approve the Plan and the Project, and in connection therewith, the Council hereby finds 

25

 #6.



2 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

 

and determines that the foregoing activities and undertakings are within the scope of the powers 

of the City, and the Council has further found and determined that such activities and undertakings 

are for a public purpose; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI as follows, to-wit: 

 

SECTION 1. The Recitals to this Ordinance including, without limitation, the findings and 

determinations therein, are hereby incorporated by reference in their entirety in this Ordinance as 

if set forth in full at this place. 

 

SECTION 2. The Council hereby further finds and determines that the acquisition, construction, 

improvement and equipping of the Project and the jobs created thereby will promote the economic 

well-being and industrial development of the City, the taxing entities in whose jurisdictions the 

Project is located, and such other affected taxing entities, and that the issuance of the Bonds to pay 

a portion of the costs of the Project will be in furtherance of the public purposes set forth in the 

Act, all as further set forth in the Plan.  As such, the Plan and the Project are hereby approved. 

 

SECTION 3. The portions of this Ordinance shall be severable.  In the event that any portion of 

this Ordinance is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining portions 

of this Ordinance are valid, unless the court finds the valid portions of this Ordinance are so 

essential and inseparably connected with and dependent upon the void portion that it cannot be 

presumed that the Council would have enacted the valid portions without the invalid ones, or unless 

the court finds that the valid portions standing alone are incomplete and are incapable of being 

executed in accordance with the legislative intent. 

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and 

adoption by the Council, and its signature by the officer presiding at the meeting at which it was 

passed and adopted. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri on this 6th day of 

April, 2020. 

 

 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Presiding Officer at Meeting 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Diane Kay Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk  

26

 #6.



3 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

PLAN FOR INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

27

 #6.



 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
 

(PLUMROSE USA MANUFACTURING FACILITY PROJECT) 

 

 

 

 

 

PLAN FOR 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

AND 

COSTS/BENEFITS ANALYSIS 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2020 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared for the City of Moberly by 

 

Cunningham, Vogel & Rost, P.C. 
legal counselors to local government 

 

 

28

 #6.



 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
(PLUMROSE USA MANUFACTURING FACILITY PROJECT) 

 

PLAN FOR INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

AND 

COSTS/BENEFITS ANALYSIS 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

                  PAGE NO. 

I. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  ……………………………………………… 1 

II. PARTIES  ………………………………………………………………………….. 1 

III. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT  …………………………………………………. 2 

IV. ESTIMATED COST OF THE PROJECT  …………………………………………….. 5 

V. STATEMENT OF SOURCE OF FUNDS TO BE EXPENDED FOR THE PROJECT  ……... 5 

VI. STATEMENT OF THE TERMS UPON WHICH THE FACILITIES TO BE 

 PROVIDED BY THE PROJECT ARE TO BE LEASED OR OTHERWISE  

 DISPOSED OF BY THE MUNICIPALITY  …………………………………………… 5 

VII. STATEMENT IDENTIFYING EACH SCHOOL DISTRICT, COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

 DISTRICT, COUNTY, OR CITY AFFECTED BY SUCH PROJECT EXCEPT  

 PROPERTY ASSESSED BY THE STATE TAX COMMISSION PURSUANT TO 

 CHAPTERS 151 AND 153, RSMO.  ……………………………………………….. 6 

VIII. MOST RECENT EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE REAL 

 PROPERTY AND PERSONAL PROPERTY INCLUDED IN THE PROJECT  …………... 7 

IX. ESTIMATE OF THE EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE REAL  

 PROPERTY AND PERSONAL PROPERTY INCLUDED IN THE  

 PROJECT AFTER DEVELOPMENT  ………………………………………………... 7 

X. AN ANALYSIS OF THE COSTS AND BENEFITS OF THE PROJECT ON EACH 

 SCHOOL DISTRICT, COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT, COUNTY OR CITY  …..... 8 

XI. IDENTIFICATION OF ANY PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES EXPECTED TO BE MADE 

 BY ANY LESSEE OF THE PROJECT, AND THE DISPOSITION OF ANY SUCH 

 PAYMENTS BY THE MUNICIPALITY  ……………………………………………… 11 

XII. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS  ………………………………………... 12 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 
 

EXHIBIT A –  THE PROPERTY – LEGAL DESCRIPTION  ………………………………… 17 

EXHIBIT B – THE PROJECT LOCATION  ………………………………………………... 18 

EXHIBIT C – SUMMARY OF PROJECT REVENUES  ……………………………………… 19 

EXHIBIT D – ESTIMATED TOTAL TAX REVENUE WITH NO PROJECT …………………. 20 

EXHIBIT E – PROJECTED REAL PROPERTY TAX REVENUES WITH ABATEMENT  …….. 22 

EXHIBIT F –  PROJECTED PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX REVENUES WITH ABATEMENT   

  (DEPRECIATION APPLIED)  ………………………………………………. 25 

EXHIBIT G –  EXEMPTED SALES TAX REVENUES ………………………………………. 28 

29

 #6.



1 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

AND 

COSTS/BENEFITS ANALYSIS 
 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

(PLUMROSE USA MANUFACTURING FACILITY PROJECT) 
 

 

I. Industrial Development Plan 

 

Pursuant to section 100.020 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, the City of 

Moberly, Missouri (the “City”) enjoys express authority to carry out projects for industrial 

development.  Additionally, the City may issue industrial revenue bonds to facilitate a “project for 

industrial development” under the terms of sections 100.010 to 100.200 of the Revised Statutes of 

Missouri, as amended (the “IDB Act”) and article VI, section 27(b) of the Missouri Constitution 

(together with the IDB Act, the “Acts”).   

 

Under the IDB Act, a “project for industrial development” or “project” is defined as “the 

purchase, construction, extension and improvement of warehouses, distribution facilities, research 

and development facilities, office industries, agricultural processing industries, service facilities 

which provide interstate commerce, and industrial plants, including the real estate either within or 

without the limits of such municipalities, buildings, fixtures, and machinery.”  Pursuant to the 

Acts, the City intends to issue taxable industrial revenue bonds ( “Chapter 100 Bonds”) to 

facilitate a proposed industrial development project on behalf of Plumrose USA, Inc. (the 

“Company”), a Delaware corporation duly authorized to do business in Missouri and having a 

principal office at 651 West Washington Boulevard, Suite #304, Chicago, Illinois 60661. 

 

The IDB Act requires any city proposing to carry out a project for industrial development 

to approve a plan for the proposed project.  Accordingly, the City has caused this plan for an 

industrial development project (this “Plan”) to be prepared pursuant to the Acts to analyze and 

inform certain affected taxing entities of the potential costs and benefits, including the related 

anticipated tax impact on such affected taxing entities, of using Chapter 100 Bonds to facilitate 

abatement of ad valorem real and personal property taxes and exemption from sales and use taxes 

on property purchased for use in or incorporated into the project described below.   

 

II. Parties 

 

The Company.  The Company was formed in 1932 and now offers several different product 

lines located across the United States which include products such as sliced deli meat, bacon, deli 

counter ham, canned ham, and cooked ribs. The Company now seeks to lease, construct, and 

conduct operations at a new food/bakery manufacturing facility (collectively, the “Project”) to be 

constructed on a site containing approximately 40 acres assembled within the Moberly Industrial 

Park known and numbered as ____ McKeown Parkway situated in the Moberly Industrial Park 

within corporate limits of the City, and described in Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated by 

reference in this Plan (the “Property”).  

30

 #6.



2 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

 

The City.  The City is a city of the third classification and political subdivision of the State 

of Missouri.  According to the United States Census Bureau, the City’s 2010 population was just 

under 14,000.  The City is the largest city in Randolph County and is located near the center of the 

state, almost equidistant from Kansas City and St. Louis.  The City is located at the intersection of 

two US Highways and rail facilities operated by Norfolk/Southern railroad. 

 

The Holding Company.  Moberly Holding Company (the “Holding Company”) owns title 

to a 11.2 acre portion of the Property (the “Holding Company Portion”) which will be merged 

and consolidated with certain real property currently owned by the City containing approximately 

28.8 acres (the “City Parcel”) to comprise the Property.  The Holding Company was formed in 

2011 expressly for the purpose of lessening the burden of government of the Randolph County and 

the political subdivisions located therein, by holding and disposing of real property, and 

improvements and personal property in furtherance of economic development and job creation for 

the benefit of the City and other Randolph County political subdivisions.   

 

III. Description of the Project 

 

Pursuant to a Development Agreement among the City, the Holding Company, and the 

Company (the “Development Agreement”), upon the Holding Company’s conveyance of the 

Holding Company Portion to the City, the City will lease the assembled Property to the Company 

and the Company will construct and finance the Project.  More specifically, under a Lease Purchase 

Agreement with the City (the “Lease”) the Company will construct on the Property a 

manufacturing facility containing approximately 85,000 square feet (the “Financed Facilities”) to 

be generally located as depicted in Exhibit B, attached to and incorporated by reference in this 

Plan.  In addition, the Company plans to acquire and install machinery, equipment, furnishings, 

special tools, and other personal property to furnish and equip the Financed Facilities (collectively, 

the “Financed Equipment”).  It is anticipated that the fully-realized Project will result in the 

creation of approximately 142 new full-time or full-time equivalent jobs (“FTE Jobs”). 

 

Under the Development Agreement, beginning in calendar year 2020 and continuing 

through 2021, the City will issue Chapter 100 Bonds, in multiple series (including endorsements 

thereto), in the aggregate maximum principal amount not to exceed Eighty-Five Million Dollars 

($85,000,000) (collectively, the “Bonds”) for the purpose of providing funds for paying the Project 

costs.  The maximum term of the Bonds (and of any endorsements thereto) shall be Fifteen (15) 

years in accordance with the schedule below:  

Lease 

Year 

 

Lease Term Start 

Date 1 

  

Abatement 

Year 

 

  

Bond Payment 

#/Due  

1  2/1/2020   0  

2  1/1/2021  1  12/1/21 1  

3  1/1/2022  2  12/1/22 2  

4  1/1/2023  3  12/1/23 3  

5  1/1/2024  4  12/1/24 4  

6  1/1/2025  5  12/1/25 5  

31

 #6.



3 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

Lease 

Year  

Lease Term Start 

Date 1  

Bond Payment 

#/Due 

Abatement 

Year  

7  1/1/2026  6  12/1/26 6  

8  1/1/2027  7  12/1/27 7  

9  1/1/2028  8  12/1/28 8  

10  1/1/2029  9  12/1/29 9  

11  1/1/2030  10 12/1/30 10  

12  1/1/2031  11 12/1/31 11  

13  1/1/2032  12 12/1/32 12  

14  1/1/2033  13 12/1/33 13  

15  1/1/2034  14 12/1/34 14  

16  1/1/2035  15 12/1/35 15  

       
1  The foregoing assumes a single conveyance of the entire Project in one phase, however, the Project may be completed 

in sequential phases.  Accordingly, the Lease by its terms ends on the earlier of (i) December 31, 2036 (15 years 

following the last date for acceptance by the City of any portion of the Financed Facilities or the Financed Equipment;) 

or (ii) with respect to each portion of the Bonds represented by an annual endorsement of principal, December 1 of that 

year which is fifteen (15) years from the year of such annual endorsement as set forth on the Table of Cumulative 

Outstanding Principal Amount on the Bonds, to which an Additional Payment/Principal Amount Advanced pertains.  

Thus, each portion of the Project will obtain a maximum 15 year abatement. 

 

The initial issuance of the Bonds is expected to occur in the first quarter of 2020 and shall 

occur contemporaneous with the leasing by the City to the Company of the Property.  Bond 

“proceeds” from the initial issuance shall be used to solely pay costs of issuance of the Bonds and 

administrative and legal costs of the Project. The second and potentially final issuance of the Bonds 

will likely occur in the first quarter of 2021.  This second issuance and any subsequent issuance 

and endorsements to the Bonds required by the Project construction schedule or events of force 

majeure will attend the phasing of actual construction of the building, site improvements, and 

furnishing and equipping of the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment to support the 

Project.  All additional endorsements to the Bonds shall be made in amounts corresponding to the 

costs of the portions of the Project then completed or installed, but not previously financed by the 

initial issuance of or prior endorsements to the Bonds.   

 

To facilitate the Project, the City will retain fee simple title to the Property.  

Contemporaneous with the City’s acquisition of the Holding Company Portion, the City will issue 

the Bonds, and the Company will lease the Property from the City for a total term of Sixteen (16) 

years from the date of such initial issuance of the Bonds.  Contemporaneous with each subsequent 

endorsement to the Bonds, the City will also acquire (but not more frequently than annually) title 

to all real property improvements comprising the Financed Facilities, and to all Financed 

Equipment as constructed or installed at the Financed Facilities and on the Property in furtherance 

of the Project.  Under supplements to the Lease, the City shall lease the applicable portions of the 

Financed Facilities and Financed Equipment so acquired to the Company, in each case for a term 

of Fifteen (15) years from the date of acquisition.  

 

The Company seeks to obtain a total Fifteen (15) year exemption from ad valorem taxation 

up to One Hundred Percent (100%) of ad valorem taxes imposed solely on the realty and personalty 

32

 #6.



4 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

comprising the Project.  The City and the Company anticipate that the Property, the Financed 

Facilities and the Financed Equipment will be exempt from levies of ad valorem taxes for as long 

as the City owns such property and, accordingly, that the Company shall enjoy property tax 

abatement on the Property and portions of the Financed Facilities or Financed Equipment for a 

period of Fifteen (15) years after the City has acquired such portions of the Financed Facilities or 

Financed Equipment, as applicable.  Pursuant to the Development Agreement, beginning in Year 

4 of the Project and for every year thereafter during the term of the Lease, the Company shall make 

graduated payments in lieu of taxes (each a “PILOT”) in accordance with the schedule below.  In 

compliance with section 100.050.3 of the IDB Act, PILOT amounts in excess of actual costs of 

Plan administration shall immediately upon receipt be disbursed by the City Treasurer to each 

affected taxing jurisdiction in proportion to their current ad valorem tax levies.  In addition, in any 

year in which the Project fails to provide and maintain the target number of FTE Jobs, the Company 

will be required to make a further annual PILOT as additional rent under the Lease, as further 

described in Section XI of this Plan. 

 

Lease 

Year 

 Lease Term Start 

Date  

 Abatement 

Year 

 % 

Exemption 

 % PILOT 

Required 1     

1  2/1/2020  0  N/A  N/A 

2  1/1/2021  1  100%  0% 

3  1/1/2022  2  100%  0% 

4  1/1/2023  3  100%  0% 

5  1/1/2024  4  95%   5% 

6  1/1/2025  5  80%  20% 

7  1/1/2026  6  80%  20% 

8  1/1/2027  7  67%  33% 

9  1/1/2028  8  67%  33% 

10  1/1/2029  9  67%  33% 

11  1/1/2030  10  67%  33% 

12  1/1/2031  11  67%  33% 

13  1/1/2032  12  67%  33% 

14  1/1/2033  13  50%  50% 

15  1/1/2034  14  50%  50% 

16  1/1/2035  15  50%  50% 

         
1  Whether or not the Project is completed and conveyed in sequential phases, the percentage of PILOTs due in any 

year shall apply to all portions of the Property, the Financed Facilities, and the Financed Equipment then accepted and 

held in fee by the City.   Thus each portion of the Project will obtain a maximum 15 year abatement. 

 

Finally, the City will permit the Company to use the City’s tax-exempt status to obtain an 

exemption from certain sales taxes for purchases of qualified building materials and personal 

property to be incorporated into or consumed in the construction of the Project. 

 

33

 #6.



5 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

IV. Estimated Cost of the Project 

 

The acquisition, construction and installation of the Financed Facilities (including the 

imputed value of the Property) is expected to cost approximately Thirty-five Million Six Hundred 

Thousand Dollars ($35,600,000.00). 

 

The acquisition and installation of the Financed Equipment is expected to cost 

approximately Thirty-Three Million Dollars ($33,000,000.00) for a total Project cost/value of 

$68.6 Million.  See also Attachment A to this Plan for relevant assumptions informing these 

estimates. 

 

V. Statement of Source of Funds to be Expended for the Project 

 

The principal source of funds to be expended for the Project will be the issuance of Bonds, 

in an aggregate principal amount equal to: (i) in the case of the initial issuance of the Bonds, the 

costs of issuance of the Bonds including closing costs, fees and charges, together with  and legal 

and administrative costs associated with the documentation of the Project and the required 

conveyances; and (ii) in the case of second (and any subsequent) issuance of Bonds, the “true value 

in money,” as finally determined in accordance with Missouri law, of the applicable portions of 

the Financed Facilities and Financed Equipment together with closing costs, fees, and charges 

associated with each such subsequent issuance and endorsement and conveyance of Financed 

Facilities and Financed Equipment.  It is expected that the Company will purchase and hold the 

Bonds and each subsequent endorsement to the Bonds relating to the Project in exchange for the 

Property and applicable portions, as completed, of the Financed Facilities and the Financed 

Equipment, all pursuant to a written bond purchase agreement with the City and a trust indenture 

for the Bonds (the “Indenture”).  Other available Company funds may also be expended in support 

of the Project. 

 

The City shall in no way have liability to make payments with respect to the Bonds except 

from revenues derived by the City from payments or credits under the Lease and other related 

Bond documents and the City shall not be obligated to commit or expend the City’s own funds in 

connection with or support of the Project.  The Bonds issued by the City shall be secured solely 

by rent payments or credits under the Lease, and the Bonds will be payable solely from the rent 

payments or credits provided by the Company to the City under the Lease.  The Bonds shall not 

be an indebtedness, general obligation, or liability of the City, Randolph County, or the State of 

Missouri or of any political subdivision thereof.   

 

VI. Statement of the Terms Upon Which the Facilities to be Provided by the Project are to 

be Leased or Otherwise Disposed of by the Municipality 

 

 The City shall lease the Property to the Company contemporaneous with the initial Bond 

issuance.  It is expected that the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment shall be conveyed 

to the City as completed and, as necessary, on an annual rolling basis during the time that the 

Project is under construction, with the Company conveying to the City in December of each year 

during the construction period the portion of the Financed Facilities and Financed Equipment 

completed but not yet conveyed to the City.  Contemporaneous with each such conveyance, the 

34

 #6.



6 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

City shall lease the Financed Facilities and Financed Equipment back to the Company via 

supplements to the Lease, and the Bonds shall be endorsed in an amount equal to the “true value 

in money” of the conveyed Financed Facilities and Financed Equipment.  Payments or credits 

made under the Lease and supplements to the Lease shall at all times be deemed to be equal to, 

timed to coincide with the due dates of, and be pledged to the satisfaction of applicable principal 

of and interest on the Bonds, as the same shall become due and payable.  The Company shall also 

be required to make certain PILOTs to affected taxing entities, as described in Section III, above 

and additionally described in Section XI of this Plan.   

 

  The Company will construct, furnish, and equip the Financed Facilities and will purchase 

and install the Financed Equipment on the Property in accordance with the Development 

Agreement, and the terms and provisions of the Lease.  It is anticipated that the City shall be the 

sole owner in fee of the Property, and each portion of the Financed Facilities and Financed 

Equipment during the Fifteen (15) year period beginning in the year in which the Property or 

portion of the Financed Facilities or Financed Equipment was conveyed to the City. At the end of 

the Lease term, the City shall convey the Property and re-convey the Financed Facilities and 

Financed Equipment to the Company and the Project shall be subject to all applicable ad valorem 

tax levies.   

 

 Under the terms of the Lease, the Company shall have the option to purchase the Property, 

the Project, the Financed Facilities, and the Financed Equipment or any portion thereof at any time 

prior to the expiration of the term of the Lease at prices set forth in the Indenture.  Upon the 

expiration or termination of the Lease or when all principal and interest due on the Bonds shall 

have been paid in full, the Company will have the obligation to purchase the Project and the 

Property under terms specified in the Lease and the Indenture.  The Lease will terminate not later 

than December 31 of the year that is Fifteen (15) years from the year in which the final 

endorsement to the Bonds is made.  The Lease is subject to earlier termination provisions. 

 

VII. Statement Identifying Each School District, Community College District, County, or City 

Affected by Such Project Except Property Assessed by the State Tax Commission 

Pursuant to Chapters 151 and 153, RSMo. 

 

 The Moberly R-2 School District, Moberly Area Community College, Randolph County, 

and the City constitute the school district, community college district, county, and city, 

respectively, affected by the Project.  The Moberly Special Road District, Moberly Road and 

Bridge District, Randolph County Road and Bridge District, Randolph County Developmental 

Disabilities Board, Little Dixie Library District, and the Randolph County Health District also levy 

property taxes within the Project area.  Finally, the Westran R-1 School District, Higbee R-8 

School District, Sturgeon R-5 School District, Renick R-5 School District, Northeast R-4 School 

District, Chariton R-4 School District, City of Huntsville, City of Clifton Hill, Village of Renick, 

Village of Cairo, City of Higbee, City of Clark, and Village of Jacksonville are also school districts, 

community college districts, or municipalities affected by the Project to the extent these entities 

receive allocations of merchants and manufacturers replacement or commercial surtax amounts.  

The Costs/Benefits Analysis set forth in Section X of this Plan and related exhibits to this Plan 

identifies all taxing entities affected by the Project. 

 

35

 #6.



7 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

VIII. Most Recent Equalized Assessed Valuation of the Real Property and Personal Property 

Included in the Project 

 

 According to the records of the Randolph County Assessor’s Office, the most recent 

equalized assessed valuation (2019) of the Property is $1,060 which amount applies only to the 

land comprising the Holding Company Portion.  At present, the Holding Company Portion 

comprises 11.2 acres of a total 67.5 acre tract.  The current assessed valuation applies to the entire 

tract and reflects an “Agricultural” classification as determined by the Randolph County Assessor. 

Viewed proportionally, the Holding Company Portion represents 16.6% of the assessed valuation 

or $175.  The City Parcel, the remaining portion of the Property, is owned by the City and is 

therefore tax exempt. Both parcels are currently vacant and unimproved, providing a total assessed 

valuation of $0 in respect of personalty.   

 

IX. Estimate of the Equalized Assessed Valuation of the Real Property and Personal 

Property Included in the Project after Development 

 

The equalized assessed valuation of the land and improvements included in the Project 

Property is estimated to be $11,200,000 after the Project is complete.  The estimated assessed value 

was determined by multiplying the estimated appraised value of the real property portion of the 

Project by the assessment ratio for commercial real property of 32%.  Using the cost method of 

valuation, the appraised value of the real property portion of the Project is estimated to be 

$35,000,000 after the Project is complete.  This estimated appraised and assessed values were 

determined by using the estimated cost of construction of the real property portion of the Project, 

as provided by the Company to the Missouri Department of Economic Development.   

 

The equalized assessed valuation of personal property included in the Project is estimated 

to be $10,998,900 in the year the Project is expected to be completed.  The estimated assessed 

valuation for personal property was calculated by multiplying the initial cost of the personal 

property, by the assessment ratio for commercial personal property of 33.33%.  The value of the 

personal property reflects the value estimated as of 2021, when the Project is expected to be 

completed.  The assessed value of personal property in the Project is expected to decrease in the 

years between 2021, when the Project is complete and the Financed Equipment is placed in service, 

and 2035, when the last endorsement to the Bonds is expected to be retired, due to depreciation.  

Some of this decrease may be offset, however, by periodic replacements by the Company of 

portions of the Financed Equipment pursuant to terms of the Lease.  

 

The actual assessed value of the real and personal property comprising the Project may be 

more or less than the estimates provided in this section.  The assumptions used in estimating the 

assessed value of real and personal property after the Project is complete are set forth in 

Attachment A and the exhibits attached to this Plan. 

 

These estimates are not intended to bind the Company, or the Randolph County Assessor 

in determining the “true value in money” of the Property, the Financed Facilities or the Financed 

Equipment in determining PILOT amounts due or for other computational purposes. 

 

36

 #6.



8 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

X. An Analysis of the Costs and Benefits of the Project on Each School District, Community 

College District, County or City 

 

Pursuant to section 100.050.2(3) of the IDB Act, this Plan includes an analysis of the costs 

and benefits to the City and other taxing entities affected by the proposed tax abatement and 

exemptions applicable to the Project.  In addition, the following provides a summary of the exhibits 

attached to this Plan that estimate the direct tax impact the Project is expected to have on certain 

taxing entities accompanied by an explanation of the ancillary benefits expected to be derived from 

the Project.  Attachment A – Summary of Key Assumptions illustrates and summarizes various 

assumptions related to the determination of the assessed valuations and the tax formulas that were 

applied. 

 

Summary of Cost/Benefit Analysis.  Exhibit C, attached to and incorporated by reference in 

this Plan, presents a summary for each affected taxing entity of: (1) the total estimated tax revenue 

that would be generated if no project were completed on the Property (the “‘No Project’ 

Scenario”); (2) the total real and personal property tax revenues that would be generated if the 

Project were completed taking into account the tax exemption provided under the Acts and the 

PILOTs required under the Development Agreement; and (3) the difference between revenues 

generated with and without the Project.  The estimated cumulative value of the property tax 

abatement over the Lease term for all taxing districts is estimated at $4,044,721, or $252,795 

annually.  It should be noted also that, because the Randolph County Assessor will ultimately be 

responsible for determining the assessed valuation of the Project, the actual value of the Project 

may differ from the estimated values assumed in this Plan, which may have an impact on the actual 

value of the abatement and the PILOTs generated. 

 

Arguably, these amounts are less than the amounts that would be “foregone” by the affected 

taxing jurisdictions over the same period without applying the Chapter 100 Bonds tax exemption 

provided for in the Development Agreement.  This argument is falsified, however, by the highly 

competitive process that attended the ultimate selection of a location for the Project and the 

realization that the availability of the tax abatement/exemption provided the City and the State of 

Missouri was a material inducement to the Company to undertake the Project in Moberly.  Indeed, 

the true impact on local taxing jurisdictions may only be the tax revenues foregone during the first 

four years of the Lease term.  Exhibit D, attached to and incorporated by reference in this Plan, 

provides the estimated projected tax revenues that would be generated by the Property without the 

undertaking of the Project.  The data in Exhibit D reveal that this foregone amount totals only 

$51.96 for all of the affected taxing jurisdictions combined.   

 

Real Property Tax Revenues.  Exhibit E, attached to and incorporated by reference in this 

Plan, provides the projected revenues that would be generated from the Property and the Financed 

Facilities, assuming completion of the Project on the schedule and as described in this Plan.  The 

estimated tax revenues are shown for all taxing districts affected, including those districts only 

affected to the extent that they receive a portion of the County’s commercial surtax applied to the 

Property.  These tax revenue projections include amount that the Company is obligated to pay as 

payments in lieu of taxes.  that would be generated from the Property and Financed Facilities with 

the tax abatement.  Although the tax exemption resulting from the City’s ownership of the Project 

applies to one hundred percent (100%) of the real property taxes otherwise applicable, beginning 

37

 #6.



9 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

in 2024, the Company will make PILOT payments in graduated amounts representing portions of 

the real property revenues that would otherwise be generated by the realty comprising Project.  

These payments will increase over the remainder of the Lease term.  Estimated revenues from 

annual PILOT payments total over $3.6 Million over the Lease Term.  Moreover, in year 2035, 

when the fifteen-year abatement period will have run, the Property can be expect to generate annual 

amounts in excess of $975,000 in real property taxes alone.  

 

Personal Property Tax Revenues. Exhibit F, attached to and incorporated by reference in 

this Plan, provides the projected personal property tax revenues that would be generated from the 

Financed Equipment for the term of the proposed tax abatement.  Because the Chapter 100 Bonds 

cover personal as well as real property the resulting exemption from taxation applies to (100%) of 

the property taxes on personalty and equipment.  However, as in the case of the real property tax 

revenues discussed above, beginning in 2024, the Company will also make graduated PILOT 

payments representing portions of revenues that would otherwise be generated by Project personal 

property.  Estimated revenues from annual PILOT payments representing personalty and 

equipment total neatly $369,000 over the Lease Term.  This amount incorporates the assumption 

that the Company will enjoy applicable depreciation allowances on all such equipment.  Again, 

when the fifteen-year abatement period will have run, the Property can be expected to generate 

annual amounts of nearly $79,000 solely from personal property taxation. 

 

Sales Tax Exemption.  By allowing the Company to utilize the City’s sales tax exemption 

as provided under the Acts, the City will also provide a sales tax exemption on qualified building 

materials and certain personal property necessary to construct and equip the Project which are not 

otherwise exempt from sales tax.  Based on the assumptions set forth in Attachment A, and an 

estimated $17,500,000 in building materials purchases and an estimated $2,000,000 in non-

manufacturing personal property purchases, and factoring in the estimated $31,000,000 in 

manufacturing personal property purchases exempt from local and state sales taxes, the net fiscal 

impact of the sales tax exemption if granted by the City is estimated to approach $4,279,875,1 

allocated as follows and as further illustrated in Exhibit G, attached to and incorporated by 

reference in this Plan: 
 

State of Missouri $ 2,133,625 

City of Moberly $ 1,262,500 

Randolph County $    631,250 

Randolph County Ambulance District $    252,500 

     Total  $ 4,279,875 
 

Service Costs of School Districts, Community College Districts, County, and Cities.  The 

completion of the Project may require taxing entities that are affected by the Project to provide 

certain additional governmental services to the Property.  Service costs for Randolph County and 

the City have been estimated based on a pro-rata allocation of available budgeted 2019-2020 total 

annual expenditures for the respective taxing jurisdictions over the entire service area served 

respectively by each such taxing district.  Estimated services costs resulting from the Project were 

                                                 
1 Provides net fiscal impact of the sales tax exemption assuming all qualified building materials and personal property are purchased 

within the State of Missouri, County of Randolph, and City of Moberly.  An estimate of the qualified building materials to be purchased 

outside of the State of Missouri, County of Randolph, and City of Moberly is not available as of the completion of this Plan. 

38

 #6.



10 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

calculated by allocating the estimated services costs of Randolph County and the City 

proportionally to the Project and the Property on a per acre basis.   

 

Because the Project does not provide for residential development, it is assumed that no 

significant population will be added as a direct component of the Project.  Further, both the City 

and the Company anticipate that the majority of new FTE Jobs can be expected to be filled by 

employees who will either be coming from outside the immediate area or who already reside in 

the service area.  Thus, no significant influx of population of school-age children or adult students 

is expected.  As such, the Moberly R-2 School District and the Moberly Area Community College 

District can be expected to incur only minimal direct service costs as a result of the Project.  

Moreover, to the extent any such student population increases are experienced, currently existing 

facilities are expected to satisfy any additional service demand.  Table 1 below page provides a 

comparison of estimated annual costs by taxing entity to provide services to the Property under 

“No Build” and “With Project” scenarios. 

 

Table 1: Taxing Entity Annual Service Costs 1  

 

Taxing Entity 
“No Build” Services 

to Property 2 

“No Build” 

Services 

Costs to 

Property 

Added Services 

to Property 

“With Project” 3 

Total  

Services Costs  

to Property 

“With Project” 

City of Moberly 

Administration, Law 

Enforcement, General Public 

Works, Community 

Development, Insurance, Debt 

Service, Capital Improvements, 

Transportation  

$125,245.75 4 

Municipal Court, Public 

Works Service, Building 

Inspection, Solid Waste, 

Wastewater, Water, Fire 

and Emergency Services 

$144,412.68 5 

Randolph County 

General County Government 

Services, County Roads, 

Bridges, and Transportation, 

County Law Enforcement,  

$4157.52 
Health Code 

Enforcement, Dispatch 

Services 
$4212.29 

Moberly School 

District 
Elementary & Secondary 

Education. 
$0 None/Minimal $0 

Moberly Area 

Community 

College 

Adult & Higher Education. $0 None/Minimal $0 

 
________________________________________________________ 

1   Services costs are based upon a pro-rata allocation of applicable portions of available 2019-2020 annual budget data for each 

individual taxing entity on a per acre basis.  After the estimated services costs are determined for each individual taxing entity, such 

estimated services costs are applied to the Project based on a ratio of the total service area acreage of the taxing entity versus the acreage 

of the Project area. Where no service population exists, certain service costs are presumed to be $0.00. 
2  “No Build” services are those provided on a general basis to all properties within the taxing district, whether improved or unimproved. 
3  “With Project” services are those services provided to individual parcels of property with improvements.  As such, these services will 

be additional services the taxing entity will have to provide to the Property once the Project is complete.  Costs shown are allocation only 

– not necessarily actual costs. 
4  Pro-rata allocation assumes that service demand associated with each acre is equal; in fact, vacant ground generates significantly less 

service demand than occupied ground.  As such, this estimate of costs is likely a significant over-estimate of actual costs associated with 

the Property as presently used. 
5  First Project Year only, based on pro-rata allocation of services applied to existing City population multiplied by number of new jobs 

expected. 

39

 #6.



11 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

Taxing entities identified in Section VII of this Plan that are affected by the Project only to 

the extent that they receive allocations of commercial surcharge amounts will provide no services 

to the Property, and thus, will bear no associated services costs. 

 

As the Project is developed, affected taxing entities, particularly the City, may experience 

increased capital or operation costs as a result of providing services to industrial operations on the 

Property.  For example, emergency services demand may increase due to the increase of industrial 

activity.  However, some of these potential increased costs may be absorbed by the capacity of 

existing facilities that currently serve areas around the Property.  On the other hand, individual 

facilities that currently are at capacity or in the near future may reach capacity could be 

overburdened by significant increases in localized demand.  Simply put, the costs and impacts on 

taxing entities resulting directly from Project completion are difficult or impossible to objectively 

quantify.  Any increase in business activity, construction, and development creates a potential 

concomitant increase in localized demand for certain public services.  Where such impacts may be 

anticipated, however, these have been considered against the anticipated magnitude of new 

revenues generated by development and job creation that will be available to meet cost concerns. 

 

Ancillary Project Benefits.  During the term of the abatement, the Company is expected to 

create and maintain 142 FTE Jobs at the Property.  The City and Randolph County may therefore 

experience an increase in businesses to support the Project’s employees and operations.  The 

Project may also provide collateral benefits for local suppliers during the construction period.  If 

the Company fails to create and maintain this anticipated number of FTE Jobs, the Company will 

pay PILOTs in amounts tied to the number of FTE Jobs actually created, as described in Section 

XI of this Plan, with the amount of PILOTs increasing as the number of FTE Jobs actually created 

decreases.  Recognizing the difficulties in quantifying costs and impacts of the Project identified 

above, ancillary impacts were not quantified for the purposes of the Project and this Plan. 

 

XI. Identification of any Payments In Lieu of Taxes Expected to be Made by Any Lessee of 

the Project, and the Disposition of any such Payments by the Municipality 

 

As noted above, beginning in Year 4 of the Project, the Company will begin making PILOT 

payments on a graduated increasing scale through the term of the Lease as illustrated in the table 

below: 

 
 

 Lease Term   

Abatement 

Year  

% 

Exemption  
% PILOT 

Required 1 

 1/1/2024  4  95%   5% 

 1/1/2025  5  80%  20% 

 1/1/2026  6  80%  20% 

 1/1/2027  7  67%  33% 

 1/1/2028  8  67%  33% 

 1/1/2029  9  67%  33% 

 1/1/2030  10  67%  33% 

 Lease Term   

Abatement 

Year  

% 

Exemption  
% PILOT 

Required 1 

40

 #6.



12 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

 1/1/2031  11  67%  33% 

 1/1/2032  12  67%  33% 

 1/1/2033  13  50%  50% 

 1/1/2034  14  50%  50% 

 1/1/2035  15  50%  50% 
 

 

1  The table above assumes a single phase completion and conveyance of the Project.  However, whether or not the 

Project is completed and conveyed in sequential phases, the percentage of PILOTs due in any year shall apply to all 

portions of the Property, the Financed Facilities, and the Financed Equipment then accepted and held in fee by the 

City.  Thus, each portion of the Project will enjoy a maximum 15 year abatement. 

 

Under the Development Agreement, PILOTs equal to the percentage indicated on the 

schedule above of that amount which would have been levied and collected on the land and 

improvements to such Property and on the personalty located or installed therein or thereon in each 

applicable year will be determined from time to time by the Randolph County Assessor.  In 

compliance with section 100.050.3 of the IDB Act, PILOT amounts above in excess of actual costs 

of Plan administration upon receipt will be disbursed by the City Treasurer to each affected taxing 

jurisdiction in proportion to their current ad valorem tax levies. 

 

If the Company provides and maintains the anticipated 142 FTE Jobs through the Project, 

the Company will not incur an obligation to pay additional PILOTs (over those described in the 

preceding paragraph) during the term of the Bonds.  However, if the number of FTE Jobs is 

determined to be less than 142, calculated in accordance with the Development Agreement, 

Company will pay additional PILOTs on the Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment in 

the form of additional rent payments under the Lease (the “Additional Rents”), beginning in 2021 

and in any year thereafter that the Bonds remain outstanding in which the number of FTE Jobs is 

not 142.  The PILOTS will be calculated on a sliding scale based on the number of FTE Jobs 

actually provided compared to the target amount required.  Such Additional Rents will be also 

disbursed to applicable taxing districts in accordance with section 100.050.3 of the IDB Act. 

 

XII. Conclusion and Recommendations 

 

Based on representations of the Company, the decision by the Company to pursue the 

Project would not have occurred without the City’s commitment to adopt and approve the Plan.  

The Project will provide a significant net benefit to Randolph County, the City, and other affected 

taxing entities.  The Project is anticipated to generate 142 Jobs.  The creation of 142 Jobs will 

provide a significant benefit to local taxing entities by increasing the overall tax base. 

 

 An additional overall benefit of the Project to affected taxing districts, as illustrated in 

Exhibit C – Summary of Project Revenues and Section X of this Plan, is the increase in taxing 

revenue after the end of the proposed tax abatement period of an estimated $1,054,736 annually, 

a significant increase over the annual tax revenue of approximately $14 that is estimated to be 

collected after the end of the abatement period if the Project were not to occur.  Conversely, the 

estimated services costs resulting from the Project are minor compared to the correlative benefits 

of the Project.  Under the circumstances and in furtherance of the profusion of resulting benefits, 

this Plan recommends the adoption and approval of the Industrial Development Plan and 

41

 #6.



13 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

Costs/Benefits Analysis for the City of Moberly, Missouri (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility 

Project) and the approval and implementation of the Project. 

42

 #6.



14 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

Attachment A – Summary of Key Assumptions and Sources 

 

The following assumptions have been applied in the foregoing Plan and in the Costs/Benefits 

Analysis.  Where applicable sources of information and limits have been identified: 

 

1. The cost of acquiring, constructing, and installing the Financed Facilities is estimated to be 

$35,600,000.  The cost of acquiring and installing the Financed Equipment is estimated to 

be $33,000,000.  The foregoing estimated costs were provided by the Company in 

connection with the initial Project Information Questionnaire submitted to the Missouri 

Department of Economic Development.  These costs may be subject to further refinement 

based on construction costs estimates obtained by the Company in the course of the Project.  

The City has not undertaken to verify the accuracy of these estimates by independent 

investigation.  

 

2. The Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment are expected to be complete by 

December 31, 2021, but may be completed prior to that date.  This Plan and accompanying 

the Costs/Benefits analysis assumes that 100% of the Financed Facilities and Financed 

Equipment will be completed in 2021, but takes into account the possibility that delays in 

construction or events of force majeure could extend this period. 

 

3. Construction of the Financed Facilities will begin early in 2020.  The Holding Company 

Portion will be conveyed to the City at the initial closing on the Bonds.  Purchase of the 

Financed Equipment will begin in 2020 and will be completed and installed not later than 

December 31, 2021.   

 

4. The Financed Facilities and the Financed Equipment will be owned by the City and leased 

to the Company at all times during the term of the Lease. 

 

5. The Property, the Financed Facilities, and the Financed Equipment will be excluded from 

the calculation of ad valorem property taxes for the term of the Lease.  Each year, the 

portions of the Financed Facilities and Financed Equipment completed but not previously 

conveyed to the City shall be conveyed to the City, and the term of tax abatement shall 

commence for such portions.  The term of the tax abatement for the Property and each 

portion of Financed Equipment and Financed Facilities shall be fifteen (15) years 

beginning in the year in which such portion was conveyed to the City.  At the end of the 

fifteen-year period of abatement, the Property and the Financed Equipment and Financed 

Facilities will be conveyed back to the Company, and taxing districts will begin receiving 

the full tax revenue from the Project. 

 

6. For the purposes of calculating the impact of the proposed abatement on real and personal 

property tax revenues, it is assumed that the Company will maintain at least 142 Jobs on 

the Property and therefore will not have to pay Additional Rent constituting PILOTs. 

 

7. Taxes on commercial real property and personal property were calculated using the 

following formula: 

(Assessed Value x Tax Rate)/100 

43

 #6.



15 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

 

8. Assessed value of the Property and Financed Facilities was calculated using the following 

formula: 

Fair Market Value x Assessment Ratio of 32% 

 

9. Assessed value of the Financed Equipment was calculated using the following formula: 

 

(Cost * Depreciation Factor) x Assessment Ratio of 33.33% 

 

10. The most recent equalized assessed value was obtained from the tax receipts prepared and 

issued by the Randolph County Collector’s Office.  The current value of the Property was 

calculated using the fair market value of the Property of $600,000.  The estimated assessed 

value for the Property used to determine tax revenue if the Project is not completed was 

calculated using the cost method of valuation and assuming an increase in value of 2% 

every 2 years. 

 

11. The estimated assessed value of the Property, Financed Facilities, and Financed Equipment 

during construction and after the Project is complete was provided by the Company and is 

based solely on the estimated costs of the various Project components.  This Plan assumes 

the accuracy of these figures.  To the extent that the actual value of the Property, Financed 

Facilities, and Financed Equipment during and after completion of the Project differs from 

the figures provided by the Company, the impact on tax revenue may be more or less than 

described in this Plan. The City and the Company accept no responsibility or liability for 

such impacts or differences. 

 

12. For the purposes of calculating the assessed value of the real property (the completed 

Financed Facilities, including the Property and its improvements) if the Project is 

completed, it is assumed that the value of such real property will remain flat during the 

abatement period because any increase in the value of the Property will be offset by 

depreciation of the Financed Facilities.   

 

13. It is assumed that the Financed Equipment has an average depreciable life of seven (7) 

years.  The depreciated fair market value of the Financed Equipment is calculated in this 

Costs/Benefits Analysis using a 7-year Missouri depreciation schedule.  In the year of the 

Financed Equipment’s purchase, the fair market value is assumed to be the Financed 

Equipment’s cost.  At the end of the year of purchase, a depreciation factor is applied to 

the cost to determine the value on January 1 of the next year.  Thereafter, at the end of each 

year, the applicable depreciation factor is applied to the original cost to determine the 

property’s value on January 1 of the following year.  The table below shows the assumed 

depreciation factors.  After the 7th year, the assumed fair market value of the property for 

personal property taxation purposes remains at 10% of its original purchase price.  The 

attached analysis assumes that no personal property is replaced during the term of the 

proposed tax abatement.   

 

44

 #6.



16 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

 

14. For purposes of determining the impact of the sales tax exemption, it is assumed that: 

 

(a) The applicable sales tax rate is 8.425%, of which 4.225% is allocable to the State 

of Missouri, 2.500% is allocable to the City of Moberly, 1.250% is allocable to 

Randolph County, and 0.500% is allocable to Randolph County Ambulance 

District.  It is assumed that these rates remain constant through the period during 

which all purchases of equipment and personal property for the Project are expected 

to be made. 

(b) 100% of the qualified construction materials and personal property will be 

purchased in 2020. 

(c) 50% of the total costs of the Financed Facilities will be allocated to construction 

materials costs. 

(d) Only personal property not expected to benefit from the statutory manufacturing 

state and local sales and use tax exemption is included in the sales tax exemption 

value estimate in this Plan.  Manufacturing-related personal property purchases are 

assumed to be exempt from state and local sales and use tax pursuant to the statutory 

exemption whether or not the sales tax exemption described in this Plan is provided.  

However, ultimate classification of the property as manufacturing or non-

manufacturing may affect the value of the sales tax exemption discussed herein. 

(e) The sales tax exemption analyzed in this Plan will apply only to non-manufacturing 

personal property purchased as a part of the Project’s original development.  State 

and local sales tax will be applied to non-manufacturing personal property 

purchased following completion of the Project. 

 

15. The tax rates used in this Plan were provided by Randolph County and reflect the rates in 

effect for the tax year 2019.  The tax rates were held constant through the year 2035.  

Should any taxing district increase or decrease its levy rate during the proposed term of tax 

abatement, the impact on tax revenue of such taxing district could be more or less, as 

applicable, than the estimates set forth in this Plan. 

  

Year

After MO Depreciation

  Purchase Factor Rate

1 89.29% 10.71%

2 70.16% 19.13%

3 55.13% 15.03%

4 42.88% 12.25%

5 30.63% 12.25%

6 18.38% 12.25%

7 10.00% 8.38%

45

 #6.



17 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 

The Property - Legal Description 

 

 
        together with 

 
a total 40.0 acres +/-. 

 

 

 

 

46

 #6.



18 
Industrial Development Plan (Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project) 
 

EXHIBIT B 

 

The Project Location  

 

47

 #6.



4 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 
1  Public services costs associated with the Project are estimated, discussed and analyzed in Part 

X of this Plan, infra. 

 

48

 #6.



5 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

 

49

 #6.



6 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

50

 #6.



7 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

51

 #6.



8 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

52

 #6.



9 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

53

 #6.



10 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

 

54

 #6.



11 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

55

 #6.



12 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

56

 #6.



13 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

  

 
  

57

 #6.



14 
7. Plan Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

CERTIFICATE REGARDING PLAN ORDINANCE 
 

I, the undersigned, as duly appointed and serving City Clerk of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri, do hereby certify that the attached including Exhibit A thereto, is a true and accurate 

copy of Ordinance No. _____ of the City approving, among other things, a Plan for an Industrial 

Development Project and Costs/Benefits Analysis, as the same appears of record in the Office of 

the City Clerk and said Ordinance was duly passed and approved by the Council of the City at a 

duly noticed meeting held on April 6, 2020 and has not been amended, modified or repealed and 

remains in full force and effect as of the date set forth below. 

 

 

Dated: _______________, 2020 

 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      Diane Kay Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk  

      City of Moberly, Missouri 

 

 

58

 #6.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Approving A Development Agreement In Connection With An 

Industrial Development Project; And Providing Further Authority 

  

Summary: This ordinance approves Development Agreement among the City, Plumrose 

USA, Inc. (”Plumrose”), and the Moberly Holding Company (the “Holding 

Company”) for the Plumrose USA Manufacturing Facility Project to be 

approved by ordinance in accordance with Chapter 100 of the Revised Statutes 

of Missouri, as amended (“Chapter 100”).   

The Development Agreement provides for the assembly, in cooperation with 

the Holding Company, of a 40 acre site at the Moberly Area Industrial Park; 

the implementation by Plumrose of the construction on the site of an 85,000 

square foot food/bakery manufacturing facility; assistance by the City in the 

installation of certain public infrastructure; and the issuance by the City of its 

taxable industrial development revenue bonds in a maximum aggregate 

principal amount not to exceed $85,000,000 to be purchased by Plumrose. 

The ordinance authorizes and directs the execution and delivery of the 

Development Agreement on behalf of the City, provides further authority to 

City officials and staff to satisfy the City’s obligations under the Development 

Agreement, and ratifies and confirms all prior and subsequent acts in 

furtherance of the intent of the ordinance. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this ordinance   

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: $0 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report    x   Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
        Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

59

 #7.



   1 

 

9. Ordinance Approving Development Agreement – (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds)  

BILL NO. _____ ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT IN 

CONNECTION WITH AN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT; AND 

PROVIDING FURTHER AUTHORITY. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Moberly, Missouri (the “City”) is authorized and empowered 

under the provisions of Article VI, Section 27(b) of the Missouri Constitution and Sections 

100.010 through 100.200, inclusive, of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, (collectively, 

the “Acts”) to purchase, construct, extend and improve certain projects (as defined in the Acts) for 

the purposes set forth in the Acts and to issue industrial development revenue bonds in furtherance 

of such projects and to lease or otherwise dispose of such projects to private persons or 

corporations for manufacturing, commercial, warehousing and industrial development purposes 

upon such terms and conditions as the City shall deem advisable; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. _____, passed and approved on April 6, 2020, the 

City has approved a plan for an industrial development project (the “Plan”) for the construction 

of a manufacturing facility (the “Facility”) on real property located within the Moberly Industrial 

Park to be owned by Plumrose USA, Inc. (the “Company”) and for the acquisition and installation 

of machinery, equipment, furnishings, special tools, and other property to be incorporated in the 

Facility (collectively, the “Project”), and the Plan contemplates the issuance by the City of taxable 

industrial development revenue bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $85,000,000 

(the “Bonds”) for the purpose of facilitating the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Council now wishes to approve a development agreement by and among 

the City, Moberly Holding Company, and the Company, in the form attached as Exhibit A to and 

incorporated by reference in this Ordinance (the “Development Agreement”) to govern the 

completion of the Project and the issuance of the Bonds; 

60

 #7.



   2 

 

9. Ordinance Approving Development Agreement – (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds)  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI, as follows, to wit: 

SECTION 1:  The Development Agreement is hereby approved in the form attached 

hereto as Exhibit A.  The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized for and in the name of 

the City to execute, affix with the official seal of the City, and deliver the Development Agreement 

in the form thereof presented herewith, or with such ministerial insertions therein or ministerial 

changes or corrections thereto as shall be approved by the Mayor consistent with this Ordinance 

and the terms of the Acts, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of the approval 

of any such ministerial insertions and corrections. 

SECTION 2:  The City hereby authorizes and empowers the officers and representatives 

of the City, including the Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk, and Bond Counsel (as defined in the 

Development Agreement), specifically, to do all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge 

and deliver all such documents as may in their discretion be deemed necessary or desirable to carry 

out or comply with the terms and provisions of this Ordinance with the signature of the official on 

such instrument or document to be conclusive evidence of the necessity or desirability of the 

actions or activities governed or contemplated by such instrument or document.  All of the acts 

and undertakings of such officers and representatives that are in conformity with the intent and 

purposes of this Ordinance, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be, and the same 

are hereby in all respects, ratified, confirmed, and approved. 

SECTION 3: The portions of this Ordinance shall be severable.  In the event that any 

portion of this Ordinance is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining 

portions of this Ordinance are valid, unless the court finds the valid portions of this Ordinance are 

so essential and inseparably connected with and dependent upon the void portion that it cannot be 

61

 #7.



   3 

 

9. Ordinance Approving Development Agreement – (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds)  

presumed that the Council would have enacted the valid portions without the invalid one, or unless 

the court finds that the valid portions standing alone are incomplete and are incapable of being 

executed in accordance with the legislative intent. 

SECTION 4: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 

and adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the officer 

presiding at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri on this 6th day of 

April, 2020. 

    

________________________________ 

Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Diane Kay Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

  

62

 #7.



   4 

 

9. Ordinance Approving Development Agreement – (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds)  

EXHIBIT A 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

(on file in City Clerk’s Office; Item 4 in Bond Transcript) 

63

 #7.



   5 

 

9. Ordinance Approving Development Agreement – (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds)  

CERTIFICATE REGARDING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ORDINANCE 
 

I, the undersigned, as duly appointed and serving City Clerk of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri, do hereby certify that the attached including Exhibit A thereto, is a true and accurate 

copy of Ordinance No. _____ of the City approving a Development Agreement, as the same 

appears of record in the Office of the City Clerk and said Ordinance was duly passed and approved 

by the Council of the City at a duly noticed meeting held on April 6, 2020 and has not been 

amended, modified or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the date set forth below. 

 

 

Dated: April _____, 2020 

 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      Diane Kay Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk  

      City of Moberly, Missouri 

 

64

 #7.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Approving A Cooperation And Purchase Agreement In 

Connection With An Industrial Development Project; Ratifying Prior Acts In 

Conformance; And Providing Further Authority 

  

Summary: This ordinance approves a Cooperation and Purchase Agreement (the “City 

Purchase Agreement”) between the City and the Moberly Holding Company 

(the “Holding Company”) which authorizes and directs the conveyance to the 

City of three tracts of real property within the Moberly Area Industrial Park 

currently held by Holding Company.  The area described by the tracts to be 

conveyed includes that certain 11.2 acre parcel to be consolidated with 

property currently held by the City and leased to Plumrose USA, Inc. 

Consideration for the conveyances provided for in the City Purchase 

Agreement will be limited to forgiveness of long outstanding amounts of 

certain loans granted by the City to the Holding Company in September of 

2001 and September of 2010.  The loan forgiveness amounts are less than that 

amount which would have otherwise been paid by the City under the proposed 

Development Agreement.  The result of the conveyances will be the City’s 

exclusive ownership and control of all of the now vacant land within the 

Moberly Area Industrial Park. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this ordinance   

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: $0 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report    x   Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
        Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

65

 #8.



 

1 
17. Resolution of Holding Company Approving Development Agreement, Note - (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

BILL NO. _____    ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COOPERATION AND PURCHASE 

AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH AN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECT; RATIFYING PRIOR ACTS IN CONFORMANCE; AND PROVIDING 

FURTHER AUTHORITY. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Moberly, Missouri (the “City”) is authorized and empowered 

under the provisions of Article VI, Section 27(b) of the Missouri Constitution and Sections 

100.010 through 100.200, inclusive, of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, (collectively, 

the “Acts”) to purchase, construct, extend and improve certain projects (as defined in the Acts) for 

the purposes set forth in the Acts and to issue industrial development revenue bonds in furtherance 

of such projects and to lease or otherwise dispose of such projects to private persons or 

corporations for manufacturing, commercial, warehousing and industrial development purposes 

upon such terms and conditions as the City shall deem advisable; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. _____, passed and approved on April 6, 2020, the 

City has approved a plan for an industrial development project (the “Plan”) for the construction 

of a manufacturing facility (the “Facility”) on real property located within the Moberly Industrial 

Park to be owned by Plumrose USA, Inc. (the “Company”) and for the acquisition and installation 

of machinery, equipment, furnishings, special tools, and other property to be incorporated in the 

Facility (collectively, the “Project”), and the Plan contemplates the issuance by the City of taxable 

industrial development revenue bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $85,000,000 

(the “Bonds”) for the purpose of facilitating the Project and by Ordinance No. _____, passed and 

approved on April 6, 2020 has approved a certain Development Agreement dated as of April 1, 

2020 (the “Development Agreement”) by and among the City, the Company, and Moberly 

66

 #8.



 

2 
17. Resolution of Holding Company Approving Development Agreement, Note - (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

Holding Company (the “Holding Company”) which sets forth the terms and conditions for the 

implementation and completion of  the Project and the issuance of the Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, the City and the Moberly Holding Company (the “Holding Company”) have 

previously entered into a certain Cooperation Agreement for Industrial Land Sales and 

Development (the “Cooperation Agreement”) which authorizes and provides for the purchase 

and sale of real property owned by the Holding Company and the City by and thorough a separately 

created Joint Board established as a body corporate and politic under the Cooperation Agreement 

(the “Joint Board”) and at it’s initial meeting of December 31, 2019 the Joint Board, among other 

things, determined that the purchase and sale of the Holding Company Portion and the assembly 

of the Property (as those terms are defined and used in the Development Agreement), would be in 

furtherance of and facilitate the Plan and the Project and, accordingly, approved and authorized 

the sale to the City of the Holding Company Portion; and  

WHEREAS, to facilitate the implementation of Plan and the transactions contemplated 

therein, the Council of the City (the “Council”) Board wishes to ratify and confirm the 

determinations of the Joint Board, to approve a certain Cooperation and Purchase Agreement dated 

as of April 1, 2020 by and between the City and the Holding Company in substantially the form 

attached as Exhibit A to and incorporated by reference in this Resolution (the “City Purchase 

Agreement”), and to approve the conveyance to the City of the Holding Company Properties (as 

that term is defined and used in the City Purchase Agreement) which include the entirety of the 

Holding Company Portion, by special warranty deed in substantially the form attached as Exhibit 

B to and incorporated by reference in this Ordinance (the “Deed”), all subject to the terms and 

conditions of the City Purchase Agreement; 

 

67

 #8.



 

3 
17. Resolution of Holding Company Approving Development Agreement, Note - (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI, as follows, to wit: 

SECTION 1:  The City Purchase Agreement is hereby approved in the form attached as 

Exhibit A.  The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized for and in the name of the City to 

execute, affix with the official seal of the City, and deliver the City Purchase Agreement in the 

form thereof presented herewith, or with such ministerial insertions therein or ministerial changes 

or corrections thereto as shall be approved by the Mayor consistent with this Ordinance, the 

execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of the approval of any such ministerial 

insertions and corrections. 

SECTION 2:  The Deed in the form attached as Exhibit B and the conveyance thereby and 

acceptance by the City of title to the Holding Company Properties is hereby approved.  

SECTION 3: The officers and representatives of the City, including the Mayor, City 

Manager, and City Clerk are hereby authorized to do all such acts and things and to execute, 

acknowledge and deliver all such documents as may in their discretion be deemed necessary or 

desirable to carry out or comply with the terms and provisions of this Ordinance with the signature 

of the official on such instrument or document to be conclusive evidence of the necessity or 

desirability of the actions or activities governed or contemplated by such instrument or document.  

All of the acts and undertakings of such officers and representatives that are in conformity with 

the intent and purposes of this Ordinance, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be, 

and the same are hereby in all respects, ratified, confirmed, and approved. 

SECTION 4: The portions of this Ordinance shall be severable.  In the event that any 

portion of this Ordinance is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining 

portions of this Ordinance are valid, unless the court finds the valid portions of this Ordinance are 

68

 #8.



 

4 
17. Resolution of Holding Company Approving Development Agreement, Note - (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

so essential and inseparably connected with and dependent upon the void portion that it cannot be 

presumed that the Council would have enacted the valid portions without the invalid one, or unless 

the court finds that the valid portions standing alone are incomplete and are incapable of being 

executed in accordance with the legislative intent. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 

and adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the officer 

presiding at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri on this 6th day of 

April, 2020. 

    

________________________________ 

Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Diane Kay Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

  

69

 #8.



 

5 
17. Resolution of Holding Company Approving Development Agreement, Note - (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

EXHIBIT A 

CITY PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 

COOPERATION AND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS COOPERATION AND PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made 

and entered in to as of April 1, 2020 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI, a city of the third classification and Missouri municipal corporation 

having a principal office at 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (the “City”) and 

MOBERLY HOLDING COMPANY, a Missouri nonprofit corporation having a principal office 

at 115 North Williams Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (the “Holding Company”).  Capitalized 

terms used and not defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings ascribed to them in that 

certain Development Agreement dated as of April 1, 2020 (the “Development Agreement”) by and 

among the City, the Holding Company, and Plumrose USA, Inc. (the “Company”).  

 

RECITALS 

 

 A. The City and the Holding Company wish to cooperate with one another and to 

provide for the coordinated sale and development of certain industrial lands situated in the Moberly 

Area Industrial Park and currently owned in fee by the respective entities all subject to the terms 

of and as set forth in that certain Cooperation Agreement for Industrial Land Sales and 

Development dated as of December ___, 2019 (the “Joint Board Agreement”). 

 

 B. To provide for the efficient sale and development of the aforesaid industrial lands, 

the City and the Holding Company pursuant to the Joint Board Agreement have established a joint 

board (the “Joint Board”) to supervise, manage and have charge of the sale and development of 

the aforesaid industrial lands, to set forth the respective duties and obligations of and benefits to 

the respective entities in connection therewith, and to establish  the powers and duties and other 

provisions, all as further set forth in the Joint Board Agreement. 

 

 C. To achieve the conveyance and consolidation under a single ownership of certain 

portions of the aforesaid industrial lands and to facilitate the undertaking of the Project by the 

Company in accordance with the terms of the Development Agreement, the City and the Holding 

Company wish to enter into this Agreement to set forth the financial terms of the conveyances and 

to provide guidance to the Joint Board regarding same. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, the mutual covenants and 

agreements contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. Parcels to be Conveyed; Covenant to Timely Convey Holding Company Portion.  By 

and through the actions of Joint Board to be taken pursuant to the Joint Board Agreement within 

ten (10) Business Days of the Effective Date (or such later date as the parties may mutually agree) 

70

 #8.



 

6 
17. Resolution of Holding Company Approving Development Agreement, Note - (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

the Holding Company shall convey in fee simple to the City by one or more Special Warranty 

Deeds the following parcels of real property situated within the Moberly Area Industrial Park: 

 

 Randolph County Assessor Parcel No. 07-7.0-25.0-2.0-000-003.002, being all of Lot 6 

together with the easterly portion of Lot 3 as depicted on that certain Aerial Site Plan for Moberly 

Area Industrial Park dated 05/11/17 prepared by Outline Consultants (the “Aerial Site Plan”) and 

containing a total _____ acres; (“Parcel No. 1) and 

 

 Randolph County Assessor Parcel No. 07-7.0-26.0-0.0-000-001.000, being all of Lot 5 

together with the remaining westerly portion of Lot 3 as depicted on the Aerial Site Plan and 

containing a total _____ acres (“Parcel No. 2”); and  

 

 Randolph County Assessor Parcel No 07-7.0-25.0-2.0-000-008.002, being all of Lot 11 as 

depicted on the Aerial Site Plan and containing a total 4.08 acres (“Parcel No. 3” and, together 

with Parcels No. 1 and Parcel No. 2, the “Holding Company Properties”); 

 

provided that, notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, each of the parties 

hereto hereby mutually agree and covenant to cooperate with one another, the Joint Board, and the 

Company and to take all actions and execute such documents and instruments as may be required 

to confer timely to the City, but in no event later that the closing on the issuance by the City of its 

$85,000,000 (Aggregate Maximum Principal Amount) Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds 

(Plumrose Manufacturing Facility Project) Series 2020, fee title to the Holding Company Portion 

for use in the Project, all as contemplated in the Development Agreement. 

 

2. City’s Due Diligence.  At any time prior to the conveyance of the Holding Company 

Properties, the City with respect to any of the Holding Company Properties, whether together or 

separately, may take the following actions, all of which shall be at the sole cost and expense of the 

City: 

 

 (i) Obtain and review a commitment for an owner’s policy of title insurance with 

respect to any Holding Company Property from the Title Company; and 

 

 (ii) Obtain and review a survey of any Holding Company Property prepared by a 

licensed Missouri land surveyor. 

 

The Holding Company hereby grants permission to the City and its agents to come upon the 

Holding Company Properties or any of them for the purpose of conducting the activities described 

in this paragraph 2 at the sole cost, expense, and risk of the City. 

 

3. Purchase Price.  The parties hereto mutually acknowledge that the Holding Company is 

currently indebted to the City in the total amount of $58,379.68 based upon certain loans granted 

by the City to the Holding Company in September of 2001 and September of 2010 (collectively, 

the “Loan Amounts”).  In consideration of and as total compensation to the Holding Company in 

connection with the satisfaction of the obligations of the Holding Company under this Agreement 

and the conveyance to the City by the Holding Company of the Holding Company Properties, the 

City shall forgive and forego the entire Loan Amounts and any interest accruing therefrom.  

71

 #8.



 

7 
17. Resolution of Holding Company Approving Development Agreement, Note - (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

 

4. Closing; Holding Company’s Representations.  Closing on the conveyance of the 

Holding Company Properties shall be through an escrow, with the Title Company acting as 

escrowee and may occur contemporaneous with the conveyance of the Holding Company Portion 

as set forth in the Development Agreement and in paragraph 1 of this Agreement.  Conveyance 

shall be by one or more Special Warranty Deeds in a form reasonably acceptable to the City, 

subject to any lien for real property taxes and assessments for the year in which the closing occurs 

and any subsequent year, building and zoning laws, ordinances and restrictions, utility easements, 

recorded easements, rights of way of record, deed restrictions and all other matters of record, use 

and occupancy restrictions, and rights to coal and other minerals with the right to mine and remove 

the same.  In connection with the transactions and conveyances set forth in this Agreement, the 

Holding Company hereby represents and warrants to the City, as of the date of this Agreement and 

as of the date(s) of closing on the conveyances of the Holding Company Properties as follows: 

 

 (i) The Holding Company possesses the full right to convey fee title to each of 

the Holding Company Properties without the necessity of obtaining the consent of any 

person not a signatory to this Agreement and this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid 

and binding obligation of the Holding Company enforceable against the Holding Company 

in accordance with the terms hereof; 

 

(ii) The Holding Company has good and marketable title to each of the Holding 

Company Properties, subject to those exceptions that may be disclosed in any commitment 

for title insurance obtained by the City and issued by the Title Company, and free and clear 

of liens, security interests, encumbrances, leases, options, rights of first refusal and 

restrictions of every kind and description and any liens pursuant to indebtedness for 

borrowed money which will be discharged at closing and there are no leases, options, 

contracts, maintenance, management, repair or other contracts, equipment leases or other 

similar agreements of any kind relating to or affecting any of the Holding Company 

Properties or any part thereof which will be binding upon the City after conveyancing; 

 

(iii) There are no claims, causes of action or litigation or administrative 

proceedings pending, or to the Holding Company’s actual knowledge threatened, in respect 

to the ownership, operation or condition of any of the Holding Company Properties or the 

surface water on or groundwater beneath any of the Holding Company Properties, 

including, without limitation, disputes of tenants, employees, government authorities, 

environmental groups, prior owners, utilities, contractors, adjoining landowners or 

suppliers of goods and services; 

 

(iv) The Holding Company has not received any notice: (A) from any federal, 

state, county or municipal governmental authority alleging any fire, health, safety, 

building, pollution, environmental, zoning or other violation of law, including, without 

limitation, any Environmental Law, in respect any of the Holding Company Properties or 

any part thereof which has not been entirely corrected; or (B) from any insurance company 

of any defects or inadequacies in the portions of any of the Holding Company Properties 

or any part thereof which would adversely affect the insurability of any of the Holding 

Company Properties or cause the imposition of extraordinary premiums therefor; and  

72

 #8.



 

8 
17. Resolution of Holding Company Approving Development Agreement, Note - (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

 

(v) To the actual knowledge of the Holding Company, the condition of the 

portions of each of the Holding Company Properties do not violate any applicable 

governmental laws, rules, regulations, ordinances or codes, including, without limitation, 

any Environmental Law. 

 

The Holding Company shall promptly notify the City if any of the Holding Company’s 

representations under this paragraph 4 are or become untrue immediately upon the Holding 

Company’s discovery thereof.   

 

THE CITY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE CITY IS ACQUIRING EACH 

OF THE HOLDING COMPANY PROPERTIES IN “AS IS/WHERE IS” CONDITION 

WITH ALL FAULTS.  OTHER THAN AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS 

PARAGRAPH 4, THE HOLDING COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTY OR 

REPRESENTATION WHATSOEVER REGARDING ANY OF THE HOLDING 

COMPANY PROPERTIES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, EXPRESS OR 

IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY 

PARTICULAR USE. 

 

5. Notices.  All notices between the parties hereto shall be in writing and shall be sent by 

certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, by personal delivery against receipt or by 

overnight courier, shall be deemed to have been validly served, given or delivered immediately 

when delivered against receipt or three (3) Business Days after deposit in the mail, postage prepaid, 

or one (1) Business Day after deposit with an overnight courier, and shall be addressed as follows: 

 

If to the City:   City of Moberly  

     101 West Reed Street - City Hall 

    Moberly, Missouri 65270 

    Attention:  City Manager 

      

If to the Holding Company: Moberly Holding Company 

    115 North Williams Street 

    Moberly, Missouri 65270 

    Attention:  President 

 

Each party shall have the right to specify that notice is to be addressed to another address by giving 

to the other party ten (10) days written notice thereof. 

 

 

 

6. Miscellaneous. 

 

(a) The section and paragraph headings herein are solely for convenience and shall in 

no way be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any part hereof.  This Agreement shall 

be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of Missouri 

without regard to its conflicts of law rules.  If any term or provision of this Agreement shall be 

73

 #8.



 

9 
17. Resolution of Holding Company Approving Development Agreement, Note - (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

unlawful, then such term or provision of this Agreement shall be null and void, but the remainder 

of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and be binding on both parties. 

 

(b) The parties hereto each agree that any action at law, suit in equity, or other judicial 

proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Randolph 

County, Missouri or in federal court of the Eastern District of Missouri and waive any objection 

based upon venue or forum non conveniens or otherwise. 

 

(c) This Agreement shall not be assignable by either party without prior written consent 

of the other party. 

 

(d) This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties with 

respect to the matters herein contained or referenced and may not be amended, supplemented, or 

modified except by a writing executed by both of the parties hereto. 

 

(e) This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and 

assigns. 

 

(f) Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

 

(g) This Agreement may be executed in two or more identical counterparts which taken 

together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The City and the Holding Company have each caused this Agreement 

to be executed in their respective names as of the date first above written. 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY 

(the “City”) 

 

 

 

By:         

        Jerry Jeffrey, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

D. K. Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk 

 

 

MOBERLY HOLDING COMPANY 
(the “Holding Company”) 

 

 

 

By:         

74

 #8.



 

10 
17. Resolution of Holding Company Approving Development Agreement, Note - (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

       Michael Bugalski, President 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Secretary 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO: 

 

JOINT BOARD FOR MANAGEMENT, SALES AND DEVELOPMENT OF 

INDUSTRIAL LANDS 

(the “Joint Board”) 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Jerry Jeffrey, President 

 

 

 

75

 #8.



 

11 
17. Resolution of Holding Company Approving Development Agreement, Note - (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 

EXHIBIT B 

DEED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    [Space Above this Line for Recording Data]     

 

Title of Document: Special Warranty Deed  

 

Date of Document:  April 1, 2020 

 

 

Grantor:   MOBERLY HOLDING COMPANY,  

a Missouri nonprofit corporation 

 

Grantor’s Address:  115 North Williams Street 

Moberly Missouri 65270 

 

Grantee: CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, 

 a Missouri municipal corporation 

 

Grantee’s Address:  101 West Reed Street 

    Moberly, Missouri 65270 

 

 

Full Legal Description:  

See Exhibit A, page ___ hereof. 

 

Reference Documents: 

  

76

 #8.



   12 

 

Ordinance Approving City Purchase Agreement  

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

 

 THIS SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED (this “Deed”) is made and entered into as of April 

1, 2020, by and between the MOBERLY HOLDING COMPANY, a Missouri nonprofit 

corporation having a principal office at 115 North Williams Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270 

(“Grantor”) and the CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, a Missouri municipal corporation having 

a principal office at 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (“Grantee”). 

 

WITNESSETH, that Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) 

and other valuable considerations paid by Grantee, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

does hereby BARGAIN AND SELL, CONVEY AND CONFIRM unto Grantee the following 

described real property and any improvements thereon (collectively, the “Property”) situated in 

the County of Randolph and State of Missouri, to wit: 

See Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein; 

Subject to restrictions, easements, dedications, conditions, building lines, covenants, reservations 

and limitations of record. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, together with all rights and appurtenances 

belonging to the Property, unto Grantee and Grantee’s successors and assigns forever.  Grantor 

covenants that Grantor shall and will WARRANT AND DEFEND the title to the Property unto 

Grantee and Grantee’s successors and assigns against the lawful claims of all persons claiming by 

or through Grantor but none other, excepting, however, all claims, liens and encumbrances of 

record and further subject to the general taxes for the calendar year 2020 and thereafter, and special 

taxes becoming a lien after the date of this Deed. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor's duly authorized official has signed this Deed as of 

the day and year first above written. 

MOBERLY HOLDING COMPANY 

 

 

 

By:         

Printed Name: Michael Bugalski 

Its: President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Secretary 

 

 

 

 

77

 #8.



   13 

 

Ordinance Approving City Purchase Agreement  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 

     ) SS. 

COUNTY OF RANDOLPH  ) 

 

On this ___ day of April, 2020 before me appeared Michael Bugalski, to me personally 

known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the President of MOBERLY HOLDING 

COMPANY, a Missouri nonprofit corporation in good standing, and that the foregoing instrument 

was signed in behalf of said corporation by authority of its board of directors and said officer 

acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said corporation. 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 

in the County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

          Notary Public 

My commission expires: 

 

78

 #8.



   14 

 

Ordinance Approving City Purchase Agreement  

Exhibit A (to Form of Deed) 

THE PROPERTY - LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 All of the following: 

 

 Randolph County Assessor Parcel No. 07-7.0-25.0-2.0-000-003.002, being all of Lot 6 

together with the easterly portion of Lot 3 as depicted on that certain Aerial Site Plan for Moberly 

Area Industrial Park dated 05/11/17 prepared by Outline Consultants (the “Aerial Site Plan”) and 

containing a total _____ acres; (“Parcel No. 1) and 

 

 Randolph County Assessor Parcel No. 07-7.0-26.0-0.0-000-001.000, being all of Lot 5 

together with the remaining westerly portion of Lot 3 as depicted on the Aerial Site Plan and 

containing a total _____ acres (“Parcel No. 2”); and  

 

 Randolph County Assessor Parcel No 07-7.0-25.0-2.0-000-008.002, being all of Lot 11 as 

depicted on the Aerial Site Plan and containing a total 4.08 acres (“Parcel No. 3”). 

 

 

79

 #8.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Authorizing Acceptance By The City Of Moberly Of Certain Real 

Property In Furtherance Of An Industrial Development Project; Authorizing The 

Issuance Of $85,000,000 Maximum Aggregate Principal Amount Of Taxable 

Industrial Revenue Bond (Plumrose Manufacturing Facility Project) Series 2020; 

Approving The Execution And Delivery Of A Bond Purchase Agreement, A Lease 

Purchase Agreement And A Trust Indenture To Be Entered Into With Respect To Such 

Bond; Providing For The Form, Terms And Conditions Of Such Bond And The 

Method Of Paying Such Bond; Prescribing Other Details And Granting Further 

Authority In Connection With The Issuance Of Said Bond And The Execution Of The 

Documents Approved Herein 

  

Summary: This ordinance authorizes and directs the issuance by the City of its Taxable Industrial 

Revenue Bond (Plumrose Manufacturing Facility Project) Series 2020 in a maximum 

aggregate principal amount not to exceed $85,000,000 (the “Bond”) to facilitate the 

implementation of a “project for industrial development” on a 40 acres site in the 

Moberly Area Industrial Park.  The project is expected to result in creation of 

approximately 142 new full-time or full-time equivalent jobs at the proposed facility. 

 

Proposed to be issued two or more series as the project is constructed and conveyed to 

the City, the Bond provides an exemption from real and personal property taxation by 

virtue of the City’s ownership of the site and the constructed facilities.  As such the 

Bond is issued to facilitate property tax relief and does not represent financing in the 

true sense.  No City funds or properties are obligated in the satisfaction of the Bond.  

In circular fashion, Plumrose will purchase the Bond and “pay itself back” from rents 

charged under a lease of the facilities by the City to Plumrose.  Plumrose will also 

make periodic payments in lieu of taxes on a graduated scale for the duration of the 

lease and will purchase the facilities and the site from the City for a nominal sum at the 

end of the lease term. 

 

Specifically, the ordinance approves (i) a bond purchase agreement through which 

Plumrose will purchase the initial series Bond; (ii) a lease purchase agreement through 

which the City will lease to Plumrose the site and the project improvements as 

constructed and installed with the “rents” paying debt service on the Bond; (iii) a trust 

indenture by BOKF, N.A., as trustee which governs the terms of the bond issuance; 

and (iv) a special warranty deed conveying the parcels currently held by the Moberly 

Holding Company to the City.  The ordinance also approves selection of Bond Counsel 

and the Bond Trustee and authorizes and approves further actions taken in furtherance 

of the issuance of the Bond and the consolidation of the property necessary for the 

project 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this ordinance   

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

80

 #9.



Account 

Number: N/A 

  

Available 

Budget $: $0 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report    x   Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
        Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

81

 #9.



1 
 

10. Bond Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

BILL NO. __________                            ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE BY THE CITY OF MOBERLY 

OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY IN FURTHERANCE OF AN INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $85,000,000 

MAXIMUM AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF TAXABLE INDUSTRIAL 

REVENUE BOND (PLUMROSE MANUFACTURING FACILITY PROJECT) 

SERIES 2020; APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A BOND 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT, A LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND A TRUST 

INDENTURE TO BE ENTERED INTO WITH RESPECT TO SUCH BOND; 

PROVIDING FOR THE FORM, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH BOND AND 

THE METHOD OF PAYING SUCH BOND; PRESCRIBING OTHER DETAILS AND 

GRANTING FURTHER AUTHORITY IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE 

OF SAID BOND AND THE EXECUTION OF THE DOCUMENTS APPROVED 

HEREIN. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Moberly, Missouri (the “City”) is authorized under the provisions of 

article VI, section 27(b) of the Missouri Constitution, as amended, and sections 100.010 to 100.200, 

inclusive of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (collectively, the “Acts”), to purchase, 

construct, extend and improve certain projects (as defined in the Acts), and to issue industrial 

development revenue bonds for the purpose of providing funds to finance the costs of such projects 

and to lease or sell such projects to others, and to pledge the payments, revenues and receipts from 

such projects as security for the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest 

on such bonds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Council of the City (the “Council”) has received a 

certain plan for a project for an industrial development project (the “Plan”) which calls for the 

acquisition and installation of certain real and personal property on a portion of an approximately 40.0 

acre consolidated site located in the Moberly Industrial Park within the City and known and numbered 

as _____ McKeown Parkway (the “Property”), which activities are expected to facilitate the 

construction and installation of buildings and improvements on and installation of equipment at the 

Property including, without limitation, the construction of a food/bakery manufacturing facility 

containing approximately 85,000 square feet (collectively, the “Project”), resulting in job creation 

and capital investment within the City and the region and which includes the information required by 

the Act, together with a request for issuance of the City’s Taxable Industrial Revenue Bond (Plumrose 

Manufacturing Facility Project) Series 2020 in the maximum principal amount of $85,000,000 (the 

“Bonds”) for the purpose of financing the Project; and  

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with the Acts, this Ordinance and the instruments and documents 

specified herein, the Bonds and interest thereon shall not constitute an indebtedness of the City within 

the meaning of any State constitutional provision or statutory limitation and shall not constitute or 

give rise to a pecuniary liability of the City or a charge against the City’s general credit or taxing 

powers; 

 

82

 #9.



2 
 

10. Bond Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

 WHEREAS, the Council, in furtherance of the Plan and the Project, has approved a certain 

development agreement with Plumrose USA, Inc. (the “Company”) dated as of April 1, 2020 (the 

“Development Agreement”) providing for, among other things, the implementation of the Project 

and the issuance of the Bonds and now wishes to approve (i) the acceptance by the City from the 

Moberly Holding Company (the “Holding Company”) of a certain portion of adjacent real property 

containing approximately 11.2 acres legally described in Exhibit A, attached to this Ordinance (the 

“Holding Company Portion”) which shall be merged and consolidated with certain real property 

currently owned by the City containing approximately 28.8 acres (the “City Parcel”) to comprise the 

Property; and (ii) the leasing of the Property and the Project to the Company upon terms which will 

be sufficient to enable the City to pay principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as the 

same become due and payable, all in furtherance of the public purposes of the Acts; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable in connection with the Project and the issuance of 

the Bonds that the City enter into certain documents, including: (i) a bond purchase agreement in 

substantially the form attached as Exhibit B to this Ordinance (the “Purchase Agreement”) by and 

between the City and the Company as bond purchaser (the “Purchaser”); (ii) a lease purchase  

agreement in substantially the form attached as Exhibit C to this Ordinance (the “Lease”) by and 

between the City as “lessor,” and the Company as “lessee;” and (iii) a trust indenture in substantially 

the form attached as Exhibit D to this Ordinance (the “Indenture”) between the City and BOKF, 

N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Holding Company together with the City has previously entered into a 

certain Cooperation Agreement for Industrial Land Sales and Development (the “Cooperation 

Agreement”) which authorizes and provides for the purchase, assembly, and sale of real property 

owned by the Holding Company and the City by and thorough a separately created Joint Board 

established as a body corporate and politic under the Cooperation Agreement (the “Joint Board”) 

and at it’s initial meeting of December 31, 2019 the Joint Board, among other things, determined 

that the purchase and sale of the Holding Company Portion to the City and the assembly and 

leasing by the City of the Property to the Company, would be in furtherance of and facilitate the 

Plan and the Project and, accordingly, has approved and authorized the sale to the City of the 

Holding Company Portion; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board wishes to ratify and confirm the determinations of the Joint Board and 

to accept the conveyance to the City of the Holding Company Portion as a portion of such other 

parcels as may be conveyed to the City by the Holding Company in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of that certain Cooperation and Purchase Agreement dated as of April 1, 2020 by and 

between the City and the Holding Company (the “City Purchase Agreement”) by acceptance of the 

Special Warranty Deed attached as Exhibit E to and incorporated by reference in this Ordinance (the 

“Deed”); 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI as follows, to-wit: 

 

SECTION 1. Capitalized terms used and not defined in this Ordinance shall have the meanings 

ascribed to them in the Indenture. 

83

 #9.



3 
 

10. Bond Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby finds, determines and declares that the adoption of this 

Ordinance, the actions hereby authorized, and the execution and delivery of the documents herein 

authorized and approved is necessary to carry out the powers, purposes and duties expressly 

provided in the Acts and each and every matter and thing as to which provision is made herein and 

therein is necessary to carry out and effectuate the purposes of the City in accordance with the 

Acts, and the powers of the City herein exercised are in each case discharged in accordance with 

the provisions of the Acts and in furtherance of the purposes of the City. 

SECTION 3. The City shall issue the Bonds but only in the manner provided in the Indenture, 

for the purpose of providing funds to finance the Project.  The City and the Trustee shall deposit 

and apply and use the proceeds of the Bonds as set forth in the Indenture.  The Bonds shall be 

issued in such form, mature on such dates, bear and pay interest at such rates and on such dates, 

be subject to redemption prior to maturity and contain such other terms and provisions as set forth 

in the Indenture.  The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City by the Mayor under the official 

seal of the City attested by the City Clerk.  The signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk may be 

manual or facsimile.  The official seal of the City may be actually impressed or imprinted or 

otherwise reproduced thereon by facsimile.  No Bond shall be issued unless first authenticated by 

the Trustee, to be evidenced by the manual signature of an authorized signatory of the Trustee on 

such Bond.  The Bonds shall be a limited obligation of the City, payable solely from the revenues 

from the Lease as pledged under the Indenture.  The Bonds and interest thereon shall never be or 

be considered a general obligation of the City or an indebtedness of the City, the County of 

Randolph, or of the State of Missouri or any subdivision thereof within the meaning of any State 

constitutional provision or statutory limitation and shall not constitute or give rise to a pecuniary 

liability of any of them or a charge against their general credit or taxing powers. 

SECTION 4. The City has negotiated for the sale of the Bonds to the Company at the price set forth 

in the Purchase Agreement.  Given the purposes of the financing and the involvement of the City 

therewith, it is the determination of the City Council that the Bonds shall be hereby awarded to the 

Company at the price aforesaid with delivery to follow in the manner, at the time or times and subject 

to the conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement and this Ordinance.  As evidence thereof, the 

Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed for and in the name of the City to execute 

and deliver the Purchase Agreement in substantially the form of Exhibit B presented herewith, with 

such insertions therein changes or corrections thereto as shall be approved by the Mayor consistent 

with this Ordinance and the terms of the Acts, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence 

of the approval of any such insertions and corrections. 

 

SECTION 5. The terms and provisions of the Lease and the Indenture are hereby approved.  The 

Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized for and in the name of the City to execute, affix 

with the official seal of the City and deliver such documents in the substantially the forms of 

Exhibit C and Exhibit D presented herewith, or with such insertions therein changes or corrections 

thereto as shall be approved by the Mayor consistent with this Ordinance and the terms of the Acts, 

the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of the approval of any such insertions and 

corrections. 

 

84

 #9.



4 
 

10. Bond Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

SECTION 6. The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized for and in the name of the City 

to execute the Bonds in the manner authorized by Section 3 of this Ordinance.  Subject to the terms 

and conditions of the Purchase Agreement and the Development Agreement, the City shall deliver 

the Bonds to the Company as purchaser against payment of the purchase price therefor. 

 

SECTION 7. The Mayor and other appropriate officials of the City are hereby authorized and 

directed to accept the conveyance from the Holding Company of the Holding Company Portion as 

a portion of those additional tracts set forth in the Deed; and to acknowledge and cause to be 

recorded in the office of the Randolph County Recorder the Deed and any and all such instruments 

necessary to effectuate such conveyance, and to take such further actions and execute such further 

instruments and may be necessary or convenient to merge and consolidate the Holding Company 

Portion with the City Parcel to comprise the Property. 

SECTION 8. The selection of Cunningham, Vogel & Rost, P.C. as Bond Counsel in connection 

with the issuance of the Bonds is hereby confirmed and approved, and the Bond Counsel fee in the 

total amount of $96,800, including amounts previously paid by Moberly Area Economic 

Development Corporation (“MAEDC”) pursuant to that certain Initial Funding Agreement dated 

as of December 12, 2019 by and between MAEDC and the Company), is hereby approved as a 

Cost of Issuance of the Bonds.  The selection of BOKF, N. A. as Trustee under the Indenture  in 

connection with the issuance of the Bonds is hereby approved, and the Trustee’s closing fee of 

$750 is hereby approved as a Cost of Issuance of the Bonds.  The City shall and the Mayor and 

the City Clerk and other appropriate officers, agents and employees of the City are hereby each 

further authorized to execute, publish, file and record such other documents, instruments, notices 

(including, without limitation the Annual Report filed with the State of Missouri Department of 

Economic Development) and records and to take such other actions and execute and deliver such 

other documents, certificates, and instruments as shall be necessary or desirable to accomplish the 

purposes of this Ordinance and to comply with and perform the obligations of the City under the 

Bonds, the Lease, and the Indenture.   

SECTION 9. All exhibits referenced in this Ordinance are hereby incorporated in this Ordinance 

by this reference as if such exhibits were fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 10. The portions of this Ordinance shall be severable.  In the event that any portion of 

this Ordinance is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining portions 

of this Ordinance are valid, unless the court finds the valid portions of this Ordinance are so 

essential and inseparably connected with and dependent upon the void portion that it cannot be 

presumed that the City Council would have enacted the valid portions without the invalid ones, or 

unless the court finds that the valid portions standing alone are incomplete and are incapable of 

being executed in accordance with the legislative intent. 

SECTION 11. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and 

adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the officer presiding 

at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri on this 6th day of 

85

 #9.



5 
 

10. Bond Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

April, 2020. 

 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Presiding Officer at Meeting 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

Diane Kay Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk  

86

 #9.



6 
 

10. Bond Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF HOLDING COMPANY PORTION 

 

 

87

 #9.



7 
 

10. Bond Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

EXHIBIT B 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(included as Item 3 in Bond Transcript) 

 

 

88

 #9.



8 
 

10. Bond Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

EXHIBIT C 

LEASE 

(included as Item 2 in Bond Transcript) 

  

 

89

 #9.



9 
 

10. Bond Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

EXHIBIT D 

INDENTURE 

(included as Item 1 in Bond Transcript) 

 

90

 #9.



10 
 

10. Bond Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

EXHIBIT E 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

(included as Item 18 in Bond Transcript) 

 

91

 #9.



11 
 

10. Bond Ordinance (Plumrose Chapter 100 Bonds) 

CERTIFICATE REGARDING BOND ORDINANCE 
 

I, the undersigned, as duly appointed and serving City Clerk of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri, do hereby certify that the attached including Exhibits A, B, C, D, and E thereto, is a true 

and accurate copy of Ordinance No. _____ of the City approving, among other things, the issuance 

by the City of its Taxable Industrial Revenue Bond (Plumrose Manufacturing Facility Project) 

Series 2020 in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $85,000,000 as the same appears of 

record in the Office of the City Clerk and said Ordinance was duly passed and approved by the 

Council of the City at a duly noticed meeting held on April 6, 2020 and has not been amended, 

modified or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the date set forth below. 

 

 

Dated:  April ____, 2020 

 

 

 

             

      ______________________________________ 

      Diane Kay Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk  

      City of Moberly, Missouri 

 

 

92

 #9.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: Public Works 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Accepting The Bid Of And Authorizing The City Manager To 

Enter Into A Construction Agreement With S & A Equipment & Builders, 

LLC For The City Of Moberly Morley Street Sidewalk Improvement Project. 

  

Summary: These are the bids for the sidewalk replacement/construction along the West 

side of Morley from Coates to Hwy 24 and along the South side of Hwy 24 

from Morley to the East Outer road.  This bid includes moving several water 

customers off of the 2” water line on the West side that is continually failing 

and undersized to the large line on the East side of Morley.  

 

The total construction cost for this project is $1,274,320.22.  Utilities is 

funding $195K of this for new waterline services connecting some of the west 

side businesses over to the larger water main on the East, and the remainder is 

supported by a little less than $1M is STP-U and MoDOT Cost Share funds.  

The remaining balance will be covered by the transportation trust fund. 

 

This is the approval for the City Manager to execute the contract with S&A to 

construct the sidewalk down the West side of Morley and along Hwy 24. 
 

Staff recommends approval 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this ordinance. 

  

Fund Name: Transportation Trust 

  

Account Number: 600.167.5409 

  

Available Budget $: 925,000.00 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report    x   Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

93

 #10.



 

 

BILL NO.        ORDINANCE NO.     

 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE BID OF AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT WITH S & A 

EQUIPMENT & BUILDERS, LLC FOR THE CITY OF MOBERLY MORLEY STREET 

SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT PROJECT. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI, TO-WIT: 

 

 SECTION ONE:    As part of Federal Project No.: STP-4500(207) & STIP 2P3220 known 

locally as the Morley Street Sidewalk Improvement Project , city staff sought bids for sidewalk 

replacement and construction along the west side of Morley Street from Coates to Highway 24 and 

along the south side of Highway 24 from Morley Street to the East Outer Road. 

 SECTION TWO:  Four bids were received with the bid of S & A Equipment & 

Builders, LLC being the lowest responsible bid in the amount of One million two hundred and 

seventy-four thousand three hundred and twenty dollars and 22/100 ($1,274,320.22). 

SECTION THREE:    The Moberly City Council hereby accepts the bids of S & A 

Equipment & Builders, LLC and authorizes the City Manager or his designee to enter into the 

attached construction agreement for the bid amount.  

 SECTION FOUR:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the 

officer presiding at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 6th day 

of April, 2020.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

       _____________________________ 

ATTEST:      Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

    

City Clerk  

94

 #10.



95

 #10.



96

 #10.



97

 #10.



98

 #10.



99

 #10.



100

 #10.



101

 #10.



102

 #10.



103

 #10.



104

 #10.



105

 #10.



106

 #10.



107

 #10.



108

 #10.



109

 #10.



110

 #10.



111

 #10.



112

 #10.



113

 #10.



114

 #10.



115

 #10.



116

 #10.



117

 #10.



118

 #10.



119

 #10.



120

 #10.



121

 #10.



122

 #10.



123

 #10.



124

 #10.



125

 #10.



126

 #10.



127

 #10.



128

 #10.



129

 #10.



130

 #10.



131

 #10.



132

 #10.



133

 #10.



134

 #10.



135

 #10.



136

 #10.



137

 #10.



138

 #10.



139

 #10.



140

 #10.



141

 #10.



142

 #10.



143

 #10.



144

 #10.



145

 #10.



146

 #10.



147

 #10.



148

 #10.



149

 #10.



150

 #10.



151

 #10.



152

 #10.



153

 #10.



154

 #10.



155

 #10.



156

 #10.



157

 #10.



158

 #10.



159

 #10.



160

 #10.



161

 #10.



162

 #10.



163

 #10.



164

 #10.



165

 #10.



166

 #10.



167

 #10.



168

 #10.



169

 #10.



170

 #10.



171

 #10.



172

 #10.



173

 #10.



174

 #10.



175

 #10.



176

 #10.



177

 #10.



178

 #10.



179

 #10.



180

 #10.



181

 #10.



182

 #10.



183

 #10.



184

 #10.



185

 #10.



186

 #10.



187

 #10.



188

 #10.



189

 #10.



190

 #10.



191

 #10.



192

 #10.



193

 #10.



194

 #10.



195

 #10.



196

 #10.



197

 #10.



198

 #10.



199

 #10.



200

 #10.



201

 #10.



202

 #10.



203

 #10.



204

 #10.



205

 #10.



206

 #10.



207

 #10.



208

 #10.



209

 #10.



210

 #10.



211

 #10.



212

 #10.



213

 #10.



214

 #10.



215

 #10.



216

 #10.



217

 #10.



218

 #10.



219

 #10.



220

 #10.



221

 #10.



222

 #10.



223

 #10.



224

 #10.



225

 #10.



226

 #10.



227

 #10.



228

 #10.



229

 #10.



230

 #10.



231

 #10.



232

 #10.



233

 #10.



234

 #10.



235

 #10.



236

 #10.



237

 #10.



238

 #10.



239

 #10.



240

 #10.



241

 #10.



242

 #10.



243

 #10.



244

 #10.



245

 #10.



246

 #10.



247

 #10.



248

 #10.



249

 #10.



250

 #10.



251

 #10.



252

 #10.



253

 #10.



254

 #10.



255

 #10.



256

 #10.



257

 #10.



258

 #10.



259

 #10.



260

 #10.



261

 #10.



262

 #10.



263

 #10.



264

 #10.



265

 #10.



266

 #10.



267

 #10.



268

 #10.



269

 #10.



270

 #10.



271

 #10.



272

 #10.



273

 #10.



274

 #10.



275

 #10.



276

 #10.



277

 #10.



278

 #10.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Adopting Standardized Specifications for Sanitary Sewer Systems 

And Water Main Construction. 

 

  

Summary: The current Water System Standard Specifications and Construction details 

for the water system were put into place in November of 2012. The current 

Standard Specifications for Sanitary Gravity Sewer System was put into place 

on August 19th, 2005. Updating the Standard Specifications and Construction 

details for the water and sanitary sewer system, as well as getting them 

approved with Missouri Department of Natural Resources will eliminate the 

process of getting permits through Missouri Department of Natural Resources. 

Additionally, this will speed up the pan review process when required.  

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve the ordinance. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report   x    Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 279

 #11.



 

 

BILL NO.        ORDINANCE NO.     

 

An Ordinance Adopting Standardized Code Specifications For Sanitary Sewer Systems And Water 

Main Construction. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI, TO-WIT: 

 

 SECTION ONE:   On November 18, 2019 this council adopted Resolution No. R867 

approving the filing with City Clerk of a copy of 2019 Standard Code Specifications for Sanitary 

Sewer Systems and Water Main Construction in accordance with Rules of the Missouri 

Department of Natural Resources, Division 20 – Clean Water Commission, Chapter 8 – Design 

Guides, Gravity Sewer Design – Title 10, CSR 20-8.120 and Sewage Pumping Station and Force 

Main Design -Title 10 CSR 20-8.130 (the “Code”).   

 SECTION TWO:  A copy of the Code has now been on file with the City Clerk for more 

than ninety (90) days and pursuant to Section 67.280 RSMo. said Code may now be adopted by 

reference without setting forth provisions of the Code in full.  

SECTION THREE:    The Code is hereby adopted by reference and incorporated in the 

city code as follows: 

Chapter 42, Article V. 

Sec. 42-900.  Technical Codes Adopted. 

(a) The City Council has adopted by reference, as though fully set forth in this Article, the 2019 

Standard Specifications for Sanitary Sewer Systems and Water Main Construction. 

Sec. 42.901.  Violations and Penalties.  The violation of any of the terms adopted in this Article 

shall be punished by a fine not exceeding $200.00.  Each day that a violation continues shall 

constitute a separate offense. 

 

 

 

280

 #11.



 

SECTION FOUR:  The City Council hereby adopts the Code by reference and directs that 

one copy of the Code remain on file with City of Moberly, Missouri, City Clerk. 

SECTION SIX:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the officer 

presiding at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted. 

  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 6th   day 

of April, 2020.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

.   

       _____________________________ 

ATTEST:      Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

    

City Clerk  

281

 #11.



282

 #11.



283

 #11.



284

 #11.



285

 #11.



286

 #11.



287

 #11.



288

 #11.



289

 #11.



290

 #11.



291

 #11.



292

 #11.



293

 #11.



294

 #11.



295

 #11.



296

 #11.



297

 #11.



298

 #11.



299

 #11.



300

 #11.



301

 #11.



302

 #11.



303

 #11.



304

 #11.



305

 #11.



306

 #11.



307

 #11.



308

 #11.



309

 #11.



310

 #11.



311

 #11.



312

 #11.



313

 #11.



314

 #11.



315

 #11.



316

 #11.



317

 #11.



318

 #11.



319

 #11.



320

 #11.



321

 #11.



322

 #11.



323

 #11.



324

 #11.



325

 #11.



326

 #11.



327

 #11.



328

 #11.



329

 #11.



330

 #11.



331

 #11.



332

 #11.



333

 #11.



334

 #11.



335

 #11.



336

 #11.



337

 #11.



338

 #11.



339

 #11.



340

 #11.



341

 #11.



342

 #11.



343

 #11.



344

 #11.



345

 #11.



346

 #11.



347

 #11.



348

 #11.



349

 #11.



350

 #11.



351

 #11.



352

 #11.



353

 #11.



354

 #11.



355

 #11.



356

 #11.



357

 #11.



358

 #11.



359

 #11.



360

 #11.



361

 #11.



362

 #11.



363

 #11.



364

 #11.



365

 #11.



366

 #11.



367

 #11.



368

 #11.



369

 #11.



370

 #11.



371

 #11.



372

 #11.



373

 #11.



374

 #11.



375

 #11.



376

 #11.



377

 #11.



378

 #11.



379

 #11.



380

 #11.



381

 #11.



382

 #11.



383

 #11.



384

 #11.



385

 #11.



386

 #11.



387

 #11.



388

 #11.



389

 #11.



390

 #11.



391

 #11.



392

 #11.



393

 #11.



394

 #11.



395

 #11.



396

 #11.



397

 #11.



398

 #11.



399

 #11.



400

 #11.



401

 #11.



402

 #11.



403

 #11.



404

 #11.



405

 #11.



406

 #11.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Authorizing Execution Of An Letter Agreement With Jacobs 

Engineering Group, Inc., For Engineering Services. 

 

  

Summary: The facility plan will utilize information developed in the City of Moberly 

Wastewater Facilities Improvement Preliminary Engineering Report (PER), 

and add additional information required for SRF loan application and other 

potential funding sources. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution and sign the authorization to proceed 

  

Fund Name: Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund 

  

Account Number: 304.000.5408 

  

Available Budget $: 115,653.06 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report    X     Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence   _    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

407

 #12.



BILL NO._____________________        ORDINANCE NO.______________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN LETTER AGREEMENT 

WITH JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP, INC., FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES. 

 

WHEREAS, Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., (“Jacobs”) submitted a proposal by way of 

a Letter Agreement (a copy of which is attached hereto) for engineering services to prepare a 

Facility Plan for the Morley Street Pump Station and Force Main Extension; and 

WHEREAS, the Facility Plan will utilize information developed in the City of Moberly 

Wastewater Facilities Improvement Preliminary Engineering Report, and add additional 

information required for a SRF loan application and other potential funding sources; and  

WHEREAS, the Letter Agreement provides for a lump sum fee of $24,828.00 for all 

professional services to be provided by Jacobs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, TO WIT: 

 

SECTION ONE. That the Letter Agreement is hereby approved in all respects. 

SECTION TWO.  That the City Manager or his designee is hereby directed to execute the 

Agreement on behalf of the City. 

SECTION THREE.  That this ordinance will be in full force and effect upon passage by the 

City Council. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of April, 2020, by the Council of the City of 

Moberly, Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

408

 #12.



Stifel Tower
501 North Broadway
St. Louis, Missouri 63102
United States
T +1.314.335.4000
F +1.314.335.5104                                    
F +1.314.335.5141
www.jacobs.com

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.

February 27, 2020

Mary West-Calcagno
Director of Utilities
City of Moberly
101 West Reed Street
Moberly, MO  65270

Subject: Morley Pump Station and Force Main Extension Facility Plan 
Proposal for Engineering Services

Dear Mary

Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. (Jacobs) is pleased to present our proposal to provide the City of 
Moberly (City) with Professional Engineering Services to prepare a Facility Plan for the Morley Street 
Pump Station and Force Main Extension to accompany funding applications.  This Facility Plan will 
utilize information developed in the City of Moberly Wastewater Facilities Improvement Preliminary 
Engineering Report (PER), and add additional information required for SRF loan application and other 
potential funding sources.    

SCOPE

 Facility Plan Preparation – Jacobs will perform the following tasks to prepare the Facility 
Plan:

1. Introduction – Provide basic information for the City of Moberly using existing 
reports.

2. Location and Population – Prepare maps showing locations of Moberly and 
pertinent facilities.  

3. Existing Facilities – Utilize existing reports to outline pertinent facilities and 
capacities. 

4. Description of Need – Develop a description of the need for the facility.  

5. Design Criteria – Describe design criteria including:

 Design Period – 20 years, from existing reports
 Hydraulic and Organic Load Projections – from existing reports, taking 

into account potential flows from Project Emerald
 I/I Analysis and Evaluation – use info from NW sewer study as applicable
 Anti-degradation (AD) Review – explanation that AD review is not needed

6. Alternative Evaluation with Economic Analysis – Evaluation of two alternatives:
 Convert lift station to a submersible lift station – Develop scope and cost 

estimate.

409

 #12.



February 27, 2020
Proposal for Engineering Services

March 2, 2020 2

 Replace existing pumps and modify piping between wet pit and dry pit – 
Develop conceptual scope and cost estimate.

 Both alternatives will include force main extension – Develop scope and 
cost estimate, including evaluation of capacity of existing sewers 
downstream of new connection point.

7. Recommended Alternative – Describe recommended alternative, including 
economic and environmental considerations.

 Facility Plan Finalization – Jacobs will perform the following tasks to finalize the Facility Plan:

1. Submit the requested number of copies of the draft report to the City for review, 
not to exceed 5 copies.

2. Conduct a report review meeting via telephone to review the report and capture 
comments from the City.

3. Based on the report review meeting, finalize the report.  Submit the requested 
number of copies of the final report to the City, not to exceed 5 copies.  

4. Sign and Seal approved report for submittal to MDNR

 Preparation of Environmental Clearance Letters – Jacobs will prepare and submit 
Environmental Clearance requests to the following agencies as required for SRF application:

1. Army Corps of Engineers
2. Department of Natural Resources, Historic Preservation
3. Department of Conservation
4. United States Fish and Wildlife
5. Department of Natural Resources, Geological Survey
6. Federal Assistance Clearinghouse
7. Division of State Parks

  Address comments from MDNR– Jacobs will address review comments that do not require 
a significant scope change or additional study.  Examples of comments that will need 
additional funds to address include (but are not limited to) rerouting of gravity sewer or force 
mains, relocation of the pump station, additional hydraulic analysis of the existing system, 
etc.

FEE PROPOSAL

Our proposed fee the work described herein is a lump sum cost of $24,828.  This fee includes only 
those services outlined in our proposal.  Additional services can be provided if requested by the City.

SCHEDULE

If the City agrees with this approach, we would provide a schedule upon notice of acceptance of our 
proposal.

ASSUMPTIONS / CLARIFICATIONS:

This proposal is based on the following assumptions and clarifications:
410

 #12.



February 27, 2020
Proposal for Engineering Services

March 2, 2020 3

1. Flow monitoring of existing wastewater facilities and sewerage systems is not included.

2. Any additional studies or reexamination of alternatives required for clearance from state and 
federal agencies is not included in this scope and will require a change order.

3. Wetlands delineation and wetlands permitting services are not included in Jacobs’ scope.

4. Additional work created by funding sources is not included in Jacobs’ scope.  

5. No stream sampling or water quality testing is included in Jacobs’ scope.

6. Public meeting attendance and preparation is not included in Jacobs’ scope.

7. The Environmental review under this scope only includes preparing and submitting clearance 
letters to the agencies listed.  Jacobs’s scope does not include any additional efforts that may 
be necessary for a CATEX or FONSI determination at the discretion of MDNR.

8. All review and other meetings will be done remotely; no travel expenses are included.

This work will be performed as a modification to our existing contract with the City of Moberly, dated 
January 3, 2001. We will endeavor to be as efficient as we can in performing the work, to minimize 
costs. 

 If you agree, please sign both copies of this letter and return one copy to us at your convenience.

Very truly yours,

Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc.

Tobin Lichti, P.E.
Project Manager
314.335.4550 
tobin.lichti@jacobs.com 

Authorization to Proceed:

City of Moberly       Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc.

By ___________________________________ By ___________________________________
 
Title _________________________________ Title _________________________________

Date _________________________________ Date _________________________________

411

 #12.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Administration 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Authorizing And Ratifying The City Manager’s Execution On 

Behalf Of The City Of Moberly That Certain Commercial And Industrial Sale 

Contract. 

  

Summary: Currently, the City of Moberly has a lease on a privately-owned parking lot on 

the corner of Rollins and Sturgeon.  The property is owned by Homecare of 

Mid-Missouri.  With the closing of this business, the healthcare company 

asked if we would be interested in purchasing the lot.  If not, the company was 

going to sell it on the open market.  After discussions with the Parks and 

Recreation Department and the Public Works Department, it was decided this 

should be seriously considered by the city council.  Due to the location 

between Depot Park and the Auditorium, it was determined the parking lot 

was worth securing.  With the increase in activities at the auditorium and the 

planned pavilion at Depot Park, losing parking at this point did not seem 

appropriate. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence     x   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

412

 #13.



BILL NO: ______________    RESOLUTION NO:______________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND RATIFYING THE CITY MANAGER’S 

EXECUTION ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY OF THAT CERTAIN 

COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL SALE CONTRACT. 

 

WHEREAS, Homecare of Mid-Missouri, Inc., owns a parking lot consisting of Lots 21-

24 of Block 12 of Original Town of Moberly at the intersection of Rollins and Sturgeon Streets 

in Moberly, Missouri (the “Parking Lot”); and 

WHEREAS, the city has a long-term lease on the Parking Lot and due to its location 

between Depot Park and the Auditorium it is useful for patron parking at city events and 

activities; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that purchasing the described property is 

in the best interest of the city; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has executed a Commercial and Industrial Sale Contract 

(the “Contract” a copy of which is attached hereto) dated March 24, 2020 to purchase the 

Parking Lot for the sum of $20,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager executed the Agreement prior to the passage of this 

Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Moberly agrees to the terms of the Contract and 

hereby ratifies the signature of the City Manager to the Contract on behalf of the City and hereby 

authorizes the City Manager to proceed according to the terms of the Contract with the purchase 

of the Parking Lot. 

RESOLVED this 6th day of April, 2020, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

City Clerk 

413

 #13.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Works 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into An Agreement 

With Wiedeman Dozing, LLC For Removal Of The Fennel Building Roof. 

  

Summary: This is a portion of the renovation work approved by the council for the fennel 

building. It is to tear off the asbestos and other roofing and rotten boards off 

the roof and inner structure of the fennel building, and haul materials to the 

Macon landfill. The price can fluctuate to a max of $36+K depending on the 

difficulty of the rafter removal.  

 

It’s critical that we move quickly to get the weight off the remaining structure 

and move to get a roof back on. 

 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution.  

  

Fund Name: Structure Demolition 

  

Account Number: 100.005.5418 

  

Available Budget $: 39,280.17 

  

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    x    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report        Other___________      Passed Failed 

 

414

 #14.



BILL NO: _____________    RESOLUTION NO:_______________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 

AGREEMENT WITH WIEDEMAN DOZING, LLC FOR REMOVAL OF THE FENNEL 

BUILDING ROOF. 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. R-902 this council approved bids for work related to the 

Fennel and Pro Auto buildings; and 

WHEREAS, Wiedeman Dozing LLC (“Wiedeman”) was the lowest responsible bidder 

for the roof removal and asbestos removal associated therewith for the Fennel building; and  

WHEEREAS, attached hereto is a Public Works Contract with Wiedeman for removal 

of the Fennel roof for a sum not to exceed $36,146.00.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to enter into the Public Works Contract attached hereto. 

RESOLVED this 6th day of April, 2020, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

415

 #14.



PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 
FOR ROOF REMOVAL 

 
 
 THIS CONTRACT by and between the City of Moberly, Missouri, a municipal corporation, 
(hereinafter called “City”) and Wiedeman Dozing, LLC a Missouri Limited Liability Corporation, 
(hereinafter called “Contractor”) is made and entered into as of the ____ day of April, 2020 (hereinafter 
the “Effective Date”).  City and Contractor are each individually referred to herein as a “Party” or 
collectively as the “Parties”. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City owns a historic building commonly known as the “Fennel Building” and is in 
need of a contractor to remove the existing roof and the asbestos within the roof; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City sought bids from interested contractors for the roof work and received 
proposals from various contractors including the Contractor; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council approved the bid of Contractor and authorized funding for the roof 
work by adopting Resolution No. R-902. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the Parties agree 
as follows: 
 
1.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND SCOPE OF WORK. 
 
Project Description. 
 
 The Fennel Building is a historically significant downtown building which the City hopes to save 
and restore for some useful commercial or public purpose.  The next step in this restoration process is to 
safely remove the deteriorated roof materials and asbestos materials.  Contractor is qualified to perform 
this work. 
 
Scope of Work. 
 
 Contractor shall remove approximately 6,572 square feet of roof materials with contain high 
levels of asbestos.  Contractor shall install safety cables around the top and down the center of the roof.  
Once the safety cables are in place the Contractor shall remove metal roofing materials.  Next the 
contractor shall water down the roof and start removing the remaining materials.  The roof materials 
shall be bagged and lowered to the second floor and then loaded in a dump truck.  Finally the bagged 
materials shall be delivered to the landfill for disposal.   
 
 Contractor is solely responsible for determining the process for removing the roof and asbestos. 
 
2.  CONTRACT AMOUNT. 
 
Not to Exceed. 
 

Under no circumstance shall the payment from City to Contractor for the described project 
exceed the amount of Thirty-Six Thousand, one hundred and forty-six dollars and no cents ($36,146.00).  

416

 #14.



The not to exceed amount is subject to a final determination of the work performed by Contractor and 
may be less than the amount stated. 
 
Dumping Fees. 
 
 City agrees to pay dumping fees for bagged materials at the landfill. 
 
Payment. 
 
 Payment of the agreed upon contract amount will be made within ten (10) days of the date the 
Contractor’s final invoice is received by City. 
 
3.  COMPLETION TIME. 
 
 Contractor will start work promptly upon the effective date.  Contractor shall complete work 
within thirty (30) calendar days thereafter subject to any agreed upon extensions which may be 
necessitated by weather or public health orders related to COVID-19.  Any extensions will be reduced to 
writing and executed by the Parties. 
 
4.  INSURANCE. 
 
 Contractor shall maintain on a primary basis and at its sole expense, at all times during the life 
of this contract the following insurance coverages, limits and endorsements described herein. 
  
 a.  Workers’ Compensation and Employer Liability coverage in accordance with Missouri Revised 
Statutes. 
 b.  Commercial General Liability.  Contractor shall maintain Commercial General Liability at a 
limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 for each occurrence and $2,000,000.00 aggregate. 
 c.  City of Moberly, its elected officials and employees are to be Additional Insureds with respect 
to the coverage described in b., above.  A certificate of insurance evidencing all coverages is required to 
be provided prior to work beginning on the project. 
 
5.  HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT AND IMMUNITIES. 
 
Hold Harmless.  
 
 To the fullest extent not prohibited by law, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the 
City of Moberly, its elected officials, officers, agents and employees from and against all claims, 
damages, losses, and expenses (including but not limited to attorneys and fees) arising by reason of any 
act or failure to act, negligence or otherwise of Contractor, of any subcontractor, or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by Contractor or any subcontractor, in connection with this contract.  These 
provisions do not, however, require Contractor to indemnify, hold harmless, or defend City from its own 
negligence. 
 
Immunities. 
 
 The Parties hereto understand and agree City is relying on and does not waive or intend to 
waive by any provision of this Contract any monetary limitations, or any other rights, immunities and 

417

 #14.



protections provided by the State of Missouri, as from time to time amended, or otherwise available to 
the City, or its elected officials and employees. 
 
6.  DEFAULT. 
 
 Contractor shall be in default for failure to comply with any provision of this Contract.  In 
addition Contractor shall be in default for failing to begin work within the time specified for completion 
of the project or for failing to complete the project within the time specified for completing the project 
provided no written extensions of the completion date have been executed by the parties.  City may 
immediately terminate the contract based upon the events of default described herein with or without 
notice to Contractor.  At City’s option in the event of default it may provide Contractor with ten (10) 
days’ notice and allow Contractor to cure the default within that time. 
 
7.  GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. 
 
 This Contract shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Missouri.  The venue for all litigation arising or relating to the Contract shall be in the Circuit 
Court of Randolph County, Missouri. 
 
8.  CONSTRUCTION SAFETY. 
 
 Contractor shall comply with all safety requirements imposed upon public works contracts as 
provided in Chapter 292 of the Missouri Revised Statutes.  In addition, Contractor shall comply with 
Section 285.530 RSMo., prohibiting knowingly hiring an unauthorized alien.  
 
9.  ENTIRE CONTRACT. 
 
 This document represents the entire contract between the Parties.  All previous or 
contemporaneous representations, promises and conditions relating to Contractor’s services are 
superseded. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have hereunto set their hands the day and year first above written. 
 
       CITY OF MOBERLY 
 
 
       By:    _________________________________ 
        Brian Crane, City Manager 
 
 
Attest: _____________________________ 
 Kay Galloway, City Clerk 
 
       WIEDEMAN DOZING, LLC 
 
 
       By:    _________________________________ 
 

418

 #14.



 
 
 

419

 #14.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Police 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Repealing Resolution R863 And Adopting A New Resolution 

Authorizing The Purchase Of Police Vehicles 

 
 

Summary: 
Resolution R863 was passed by the Moberly City Council on November 4, 

2020 accepting the bid of Moberly Motors and authorized the purchase of two 

2020 Dodge Charger AWD V-8 police package 4-door sedans for the police 

department. Due to more orders being received than the production run could 

produce, our order was refused by Ford Motor Company. Moberly Motors 

began looking for new or used 2019 Dodge Chargers AWD V-8 Police 

Package vehicles. One was found in New York but was not AWD, but due to 

the difficulty in finding suitable vehicles, it was purchased. Moberly Motors 

was unable to purchase a second charger as prices for these vehicles continued 

to rise due to the shortage. Moberly Motors was able to locate a Dodge 

Durango Pursuit SUV, which is police package and was able to purchase it for 

the Police Department. At present the purchase price of the two vehicles is 

2,359.95 dollars more than what was authorized in R863. The new purchase 

price is 56,249.95 dollars  

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:  

  

Available Budget $: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    x    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

420

 #15.



BILL NO:______________   RESOLUTION NO:______________ 

 

A RESOLUTION REPEALING RESOLUTION R863 AND ADOPTING A NEW 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF POLICE VEHICLES. 

 

WHEREAS, on November 4, 2019 this council adopted Resolution R863 which 

accepted a bid from Moberly Motors for two 2020 Dodge Charger police vehicles for a 

combined purchase price of $53,890.00; and 

WHEREAS, Moberly Motors was unable to provide the vehicles due to a shortage in 

production by Ford Motor Company; and 

WHEREAS, Moberly Motors was able to locate two vehicles suitable for use as police 

vehicles, a 2019 Dodge Charger and a Dodge Durango Pursuit SUV, for a total cost of 

$56,249.95 

THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council repeals Resolution R863 and 

approves the purchase of the two vehicles located by Moberly Motors and authorizes the City 

Manager or his designee to purchase the vehicles for the sum of $56,249.95 

RESOLVED this 6th day of April, 2020, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

421

 #15.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of Moberly Motors For A 2020 Ford F150, 

Crew Cab, 4x4 Xl Trim For The Water Department. 

 

  

Summary: The City of Moberly advertised for bids for a new truck and bids were opened 

March 4th, 2020 at 10:00 am.   Two bids were received from Moberly Motors 

one in the amount of $31,074 and another in the amount of $31,382 and one 

bid was received from W-K Ford in the amount of $30,813.28.  It is the staff’s 

recommendation to proceed with purchase of the 2020 Ford F150 4X4 Crew 

Cab Pickup-XL trim level from Moberly Motors for $31,382. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Accept this resolution. 

  

Fund Name: Capital Improvement Plan 

  

Account Number: 301.112.5502 

  

Available Budget $: 118,943.25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
   x   Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 
422

 #16.



BILL NO:___________    RESOLUTION NO:___________ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF MOBERLY MOTORS FOR A 2020 FORD 

F150, CREW CAB, 4X4 XL TRIM FOR THE WATER DEPARTMENT. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Moberly sought bids for a 2020 Ford F150 4X4 Crew Cab for 

use in the Water department; and 

WHEREAS, three bids were received with a bid from Moberly Motors being the lowest 

responsible bid; and 

WHEREAS, the Moberly Motors bid is for $31,382.00. 

THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council accepts the bid of Moberly Motors 

in the amount of $31,382.00. 

RESOLVED this 6th day of April, 2020, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

423

 #16.



424

 #16.



425

 #16.



426

 #16.



427

 #16.



 

City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Clerk 

Date: April 6, 2020 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution appropriating money out of the Treasury of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

  

Summary: Appropriation Resolution. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Please approve this Resolution. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Role Call  Aye  Nay 
 
  Memo   Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
      Correspondence    x   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation   Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation   Petition M  S  Brubaker     
  P/C Minutes   Contract M  S  Kimmons     
  Application   Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
  Citizen   Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
  Consultant Report   Other         Passed Failed 

 428

 #17.



429

 #17.



430

 #17.



431

 #17.



432

 #17.



433

 #17.



434

 #17.



435

 #17.


	Top
	1. A requesting the closure of Carpenter Street between Cleveland Av and Promenade St on April 12, 2020.
	2019 COUNCIL AGENDA Carpenter
	202003310937

	2. Hold a Public Hearing
	plumrose public hearing

	3. Receipt of bids for Morley Street Sidewalk project
	Morley
	Morley Bid Tab-2-26-20

	4. Receipt of Bids for Restorative and Reclamite
	St Imp
	St Imp Bids

	5. Receipt of Bids for for pickup for Water  D&C
	Summary Sheet Work Session 3-16-2020 for DC Truck Bid
	Bid Specs
	Moberly Motors Bid $31,074
	Moberly Motors Bid $31,382
	W-K Bid Truck Bid $30,813.28

	6. Ordinance approving a plan for Industrial Development Project
	Industrial Development plan
	ORDINANCE APPROVING INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN PROJECT (with Plan and Clerk&#39;s Certifivate attached) (v.2)(FINAL)

	7. Ordinance approving the Development Agreement
	Development agreement
	ORDINANCE APPROVING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (with Clerk's Certificate) (v.2) (Final)

	8. Ordinance approving the cooperation and purchase agreement
	Cooperation and Purchase agreement
	ORDINANCE APPROVING CITY PURCHASE AGREEMENT (v.1) (Final) (002)

	9. Ordinance authorizing the Bond and method of paying the bond
	Bond Purchage agreement
	BOND ORDINANCE (with Clerk's Certificate)(v.5 FINAL)

	10. Ordinance accepting the S and A Contract for the Morley St. Sidewalk project
	Morley-Contract
	SA Ordinance
	S&A Contract for Morley St

	11. An Ordinance Adopting Standardized Code Specifications For Sanitary Sewer Systems And Water Main Construction.
	Std Specs water & Sanitary Sewer Specifications Agenda Summary April 6th 2020
	Std Water &amp; Sewer Code Ordinance
	Approval Letter for Std Water & Sewer Specs
	Final Moberly Std Spec for Sewer - sealed 03-11-20
	Final Moberly Std Spec for Water - Sealed 03-11-20

	12. Ordinance approving Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., Agreement for engineering services for the Morley Street Lift Station
	Summary Sheet Work Session 4-6-20 Jacobs Morley Pump Station and Force Main Extension Facility Plan
	Jacobs Morley Street Ordinance
	Jacobs - Morley Facility Plan Proposal Rev A[7961]

	13. Resolution for purchase of parking lot
	parking lot
	Parking Lot Resolution

	14. Resolution authorizing the Fennel Building roof removal.
	Fennel Roof
	Wiedeman Resolution
	Wiedeman Contract

	15. Resolution repealing Resolution R863 for police vehicles
	Repeal R863
	Repeal of R863 Resolution

	16. A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of Moberly Motors For A 2020 Ford F150, Crew Cab, 4x4 Xl Trim For The Water Department.
	Summary Sheet Work Session 3-16-2020 for DC Truck Bid
	D&amp;C Truck bid resolution
	Moberly Motors Bid $31,382

	17. Appropriation Resolution
	Appropriation Resolution, 4-6-2020 Agenda Summary
	4-6-2020 Appropriation Resolution

	18. Work Session Meeting
	Bottom

